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CrmCE OF THE CARDIRAL

Dear Father Yagley:

The 125th anniversary of the establishment of a parish is a
rare event. What you are planning, therefore, for §t. Alphonsus
parish in Dearborn as it prepares to commemorate So many years of
existence 1z very much worthwhile.

I welcome the oppertunity of this writing to express to You,
the priests, religicus, and parish community my cordial good wishes
and my perscnal copgratulations on this memorable occaslon.

certainly, St. Alphonsus parish has under God much to be
proud of, It has had over the years a tradition of strong faith,
a vibrant parish spirit, and an evident joy in the things that
lead us to God. And I know that, as the parish and its friends
unite in a special action of prayer, they will ask God in His good-
ness to continue to make St, Alphonsus parish abidingly faithful
to its mission in the Church.

Cordially yours in Christ,

Crad. Marde,

Archbishop of Detroit



Tribute fo Father Yagley

The history of 5t Alphomses reveals a paeiaf ol dn faith Jed by priests strongly
cam tied to their duies of lescter, leader, sad servant of the faithiful. Their effores,
diffaring fa style and intenslty, wer constant, have fad ug fo this day of calghratuen,
Each period in parish growth has beon marked with lts problens and Tis solutions
Yef, pavhaos, no periad bas been more damanding on the priest and His peopds than
the ome through which we are now moving — a period which tests faith and
corrr trnenil olaily.

't i5, therefore, particelany fitting on the occasion of the arniversary of our
parisf that we pay teibeele 19 our priests amd esmecially fo owr pastor, Father Carl
Yaglfey, witose guied courape and steaofast direction have helped 5t Alphonss
exfend, &5 well a5 maintain, 15 programs of senvice within and offer Depond pansh
houndares. Today gives o the opportunity for pubilie recognition of & faith and
constancy we frequently take for granted. Thank pou, Father Yagley, for being
Wil s,

Fevered Conl L Yapley




“F will work as if everyihing
depends an me and pray as if
everything depends on God. ™

Hedicafion

The 125th anniversary of
St. Alphansus Parish celebrates
mmore than anything else the faith
af its peomle,

Every fine af its history from
1882 until the present day reflects
deep conviction and firm carmmit-
mant to the central rofe of the
Church in the life of the communit)y.

Rugged terrain, epidamics,
paverty, dissension, expansion,
affivence, recession, and change
have entranched a faith that is living
anid functional.

Living — in that each segment
af its membership is recogrized as
wital to jts fife. No community is
complete which does not draw
frown the enthusiasm of its voung,
the fabors of its middie-aged, and
the wisdorm of s elders.

Functions! — in that sach
mamber is expected to contribute
froim iz ahliities to the welfare of
the many, and o an astonishing
degree, has done 50.

With gratitude to God for His
singuilar graces to 5t Alphonsus
Parish through /ts men and woman
of faith, this book is dedicated.

That we all
may be
One



Vision, Sacrifice, Faith

Preface

51, Alphonsus Parish was founded ome hundred and twenty-five years ago by a small group
of devout German immigrants wha had brought a firmly established faith with them from the
old country. They were determined to implant in their children the seeds of this solidarity, and
the inspiration to pass on to future generations their treasured religious heritage. Throwgh
education and spiritual guidance, they built a strong Catholic community, filled with family

spirit and centersd around their Chorch,

Today, a century-and-a-guarter later, with many of the same pioneer familias represented,
&t, Alphonsus has welcomed generations of newcomers with their traditions. This has created
an unigue blerd of the old and naew in all phases of parich lite. Mother Church bas embraced
and met their need to maintain family values through Cathelic education. The diversity of
their backgrounds has enriched parish life, opening it 1o new experiences of sharing in the Lord,
Recalling through this book the rich tapestey of The parish's history, and reliving the
triale and triumphs of its pioneers, should provids renewed srength for tha future of
St. Alphonsus. Having experienced & “Century of Conguest™ and teennty-live yaars of vital
chamge, St. Alphonsus is a testimony to the convictions and walues of its founders and fts
parishioners, With this legacy of faith we will continue te glorify God's great love.

In The Beginning

Dnmn weis a small village surrounded by thick
farests when German immigrants began to
settle near it in the middle of the nineteanth century,
Carving a farm from this wilderness was then a
tremendows Teat, The area had begun to open up
whaen the Erie Canal was completed in 1B25. Before
that, maps of the United States labeled Michigan
Tarritory “iInterminatsle Sweamp, "

A railroads crisicrosiad the coauntry, and as
the population pushed ever westward, kiy cities
expandad at & steady pace, In 1833 the Diccesa
of Detroit was erected and the Right Revarend
Frederic Resa was appointed its first bishop, This
weas alms the year inowhich Father Martin Kundig
bl Datroit's first German services — im 5t Anne’s
Church, and an arsenal built in Dearornvilla in
1833 led to new johb opportunities and furthar
population growlth, Detrait's census of 1834
counted five thousand residents. Within a decade,
that figure exceadad tvealvae thousand,

The Michigan Cantral Railroad's swood-burning
locomotives wera clattering through Sprngweells
which had not yet swallowead the southarn part of
Gresnfield, In the 1840's, and the entire area was
a strange mixtura of peopla: foreigrers, colomsts,
and ratives, sophisticates, woodsmean, and Indians,
Whaen the founders of St Alphonsus first came to
south Graenfield, their little community -
madelad after thosa they knewe im their homeland —
wias largely self-sutlicient, but & trip into towe for
supplies could be an adventura. Land speculators,
farrmers, loggers, and trappars mingled with the
Indians. The mixture of languages necessitated an
ahundance of hand signals for thos2 who did not
travel im multi-lingual growps,

Al thiowgh the farms these immigrants wrested
from the forest were modest in size, their familias
weara large by today's standards, |t was concern tor
the children that prompied thair first mutual wnders-
taking as a religiows community.

Orne day in 1846, Petar Joseph Henn
approached his naighbor, Pater Josaph Esper, with
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Erper femily ployed o prominent role iw Hhe formation o
Awriivenp, Merer, fpeod o

the suggestion that a school b estahlishad, With
the help of a faw other German neighbars, they

In that =ame
vear, an Esper's land, ima log cabin just north of

immadiately st their plan into action.

wihat is now the intersection of Warren and Bingham,

the school of an asyet-unnamed parish was opened.

Joseph Hellner, whi had been a teachar in Gearmany,

wias hired as the first schoolmaster,
titicsn of farty cents per month,
The subjects taught by & succession of male
teachers wera erman reading, religion, English
reading, and arithmetic, Before the Sisters of
at, Agnes of Foamd du Lac, W seonsing took awer the
responsibility in 1880, others in charga of the
children were Herr Peter Ternes, Kramer, Grimm,
Sehumacher, anc 'Wirth,
Considering the hardships of tha times —
cepeciaglly for newly arrived immigrants whao did not
this weas

Parents paid a

Jaminet, Arends,

speak the tomgue of their new country
an impressive step. Thera were na public schools
availabale te their youngsters,
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Laefd no Farhr
circa TEAS

The Espers” Dedication

Tf; attamd Mass and receive the Sacramants, tha
Greenfiald pionears had to travel the rougged
roads o 51, I'l.l1.:r'-,-"5 n Detroit, & parigh arganizad far
German Gatholics by Father Kundig in 1847,
Fimally, im 1862, a realous Redemplorisl priest,
Reverend Ernest Glaunach, began to make sporadic
trips to their settlement. The first Mass in Greenfisld
in the Esper home.,
The davout couple had transformed thair living room
inta a chapel for the priest®s visit.

When Father Glaumach came a secand time,
the Espers had converted an adjoining roocm into 8
sacristy and confesional. On his third visit, the
third downstairs room had become his bedroom and
five of the Espar s0ns had moved into the harn, There

the

thizir bads staved until 2t Adphonsus Chureh was

it
It was also the Espers — Peter Joseph and his
— wha domated the

waile, Cathering {nee Thiasan)



land far tha chureh, On October 3, 1851, they
signed a desd transferring four acres of their farm 1o
Bishop Peter Paul LeFewere “for the purposes of
having & burying ground, erecting a Roman Catholic
church, school, and pattos’s housa, on the pramiges
.. _far the use of the German Catholic population,
and for other such good and benevolent purposes as
he . .. ey datermine,

By the time the cornerstone was lad in
August, 1852, there wora already fifty families in the
new parish, On that joyous occasion, the Very
Reverend Peter Kindekens, the Vicar General,
preached in English; and the Reverend Albert
Sehaelller, C.85. R superior at St Mary s
Redemptorist community, preached in German.
Father Schaeffler visited the Greenfield mission a
number of times after that, including the dedication
ceremanies on Octobar 10 of that year,

The parishioners themselves built the church,
& bullding measuring thirty feet tyy fifty feat
and twenty-six feat high. Mo picture or furthar
descripticn has been locatad in historical files. Its
adjacent cemetery extendad westward into 1
present location of Schaefor Highway.

Father Glaunach was not present for the
dedicaticon; he was scheduled to preach at thres
services in Detroit. Those were 1o be his last thresa

sermons. AL age forty-nine, ha fall victim o the
cholera epidamic tham raging in the city, and died in
the afternoon of October 19,

The Redemptorist annals state:

Farther Glawnach’s death creared a graat stir,
met only in the Garman garisn, but gwen in the
Franch ard English parishes of Detroit, On all
sides, prepacalions waire msds far o salemn
funeral, & deputation fram St. Alphonss
Parsh in Gresnfield carme with the reqisest that
fis remaing be intaived i their church, since he
waad the Fowndar of that parish ard their baloved
spriritual father, Ta thair graat sorrowv, 1hes
raquiast hod fo be refused L L

e Flock: Many Shepherds

F.athar Glaunach's successor at St Mary's was

. the Reverend John DeDycker, C.55.R., who
had come to Detroit from Baltimore, Maryland. He
had hesn attending the Greenfield parish every other
Sunday. According to the Redemptorist annals:

Father De Dyckear was called to the country
o sick call. o the wegon which wai jant 0
fatch him, there weag algo the dgoctor and a mid
wife. Farher exciisad himssf far nod taking
part in the conversation becauge he had the

Tie meoond choreh building i S Alphossas s history was dedioated fn ST
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Blesied Sacrarment with him. At thes, the
dactor whio was a fallan awsy Cathalic begen
to blasphame and ridicule the faith, so that the
priast and tha midaile Tl obdiged to ger aff
the wigon and to make the journay an foar.
God punishiad the sislprit alvaoit immedetely.
He last his praciice in Detraic and ledt far
Chicago, where he died in extrams povarty
snortly after,

I December of 1854, Father Francis X, Roth,
C.55.R., replaced Father Delyeker, Shartly befors
his arriwal, the old log school built in 1846 collapsed
durirg # severs snow storm., Under the direction of
Fathier Roth & raer e was built in TARE, 11 was 3
simple frame structura attachad to the church,

In 1856, Father Roth was replaced by Father
Bartholomew Gruber, A1 the end of that year, his
statiom was assumed by Father Peter Cronenberger,

During June of THSE, Father James Magel
helped out at 51, Alphonsus, Father Nagel had
distimguishied himsalf in New York's cholera
epidemic of 1846, and althowgh history describes
his health s “alvways poor," be lHved ta his late
aighties and is credited with tha organization of
eighty-four parishes,

St Alphonaus's first resident pastor — a
diocasan priest — the Reverand Julius (or Julian)
Maciejewski was appointad in July, 1858, Father
Maciejawski Built the first rectory — a small frame
twa-story building with five little roams, He lafr
a mystery in the form of two words he sorawlad
under tha year of 1BG0 in the parish marriage
register: “Ltinam Felicior.” Translated from the
Latim, this means “1 wish 1] ware bagaprier year,"

When he was transferred to St Michasal™
Church, Manroe, in Jums, 1860, the Redemptorists
resurmed their pastoral chores in Gresntield, Father
Maciejewski died less than a vear later,

Forging Ahead

Father Megel was one of two priests spacifically
mentioned as tending St. Alphonsus in 1860;
the other was the Reverend Lowis Classsens
[Arnericanized to Claussen], He met death at a
young age when a small boat in which he weas a
passenger overturned in a starm on Chesapeake Bay,

Services at Greenfiald were again reduced to
twica monthly until January, 1861, when the pastor
of St. Mary of Radford, Father Edward Dumant,

8

began visits to 5t Alphonsus. In June, he assumed
the entire responsibility for the parish, aven thouwgh
the Redemptorist anmals refer ta him s "2 French
priest |he wwas actually Belgian), unable to speak
Garman.”™

Father Dumaont carad for both parishes until
Movember. During that tima he purchasad a half-
acre of land from John Horger for ane hundred and
fifoy dollars, On this property = now oocupied by
tha intersection of Calhoun and Warren — he began
the construction of a two-story brick schoaol building.
It was completad by 5t Alphansus's second resident
pastar,

The Rewvarend Charles Chambelle was appointad
Pastor of St. Alphonsus in Movember of 1861, His
tirst concerm was the completion of the school,
which was then the provinee of a Mr, Wirth, who
sarved as schoolmastar.

Although this was the Civil War era, church
affairs seemed to run smoothly with the hard-
wiarking Father Chambsalle at tha halm. His 1870
report stated that he celebrated Mass every Sunday
at Gl"\lﬁ!'!rlfi-l'!h:l-l wawere there ware noww Seventy-Two
famnilias, and ewvary second Sunday and second
Holy Day at Springwells (Haly Crossh, where there
wiere ninety-seven families, He taught catechism
twice a week and on Sunday at 5t Alphonaus, and
once # week at Holy Cross. Two thriving societies
weirer St Mary's Socicty for women and 5t. Aloysius's
Sociaty for boye,

When Father Chambelle weas appointed to the
pastorate of St. Mary's of Redford in 1873, he was
replaced at 5t Alphonsus by a man termed “one of
the miost colorful priests ol the diocese.” Father
George Goder came to Greenfield after a thirty-yeas
pastorate in Westphalia, Michigan, George Pard, in
his book published in 1951, The Catholic Chureh in
Detront, said of Father Godez:

The thirty vears spent as a pastor in
Wiesighalia rade ham 1he geer of any of the
Mizzianaries in the pionesr periao. Astride
hils wehiit& lgerse, and wiesring im all cirourmsonnoas
his high silk hat, as Traditian hag i1, e wai 8
tamilizr figure in all the adjaining cauntiss
and hig church records disclose that hn
anercisad s ministry thicughowet The sea,

An official photograph of Father Godez
depicts him with a dour face, but that was probably
bacausa it was not fashionable to srmile for ane's
portrait in those days. 1t is obvicuws he cared
ceeply about his fellow Christians, and although he
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Faiker Greorpe (radez, the thind
pazrar of 51, Alpfansis,
cortracted for o rew oliprol

L

waas slight in build, ke had a hard Hife and was an
ervergeti: worker for tha Lord. He was seveniy-one
years of age when he came to 5t. Alphonsus, but
continuad to keap up his reputation as a mover.,

The parish report for 1873 showed a balance
of threa hundrad and fifty dollars in the church
traasury, but that didn’t step Father Godez from
contracting for & new church that would cest
$6,779.30. Fifty-one pews affording a seating
capacity of about two hundred and fifty, wera
installed in the spacious new sanctuary, Front-row
segts were in demand then, Those pews rentad for
sixtesn dollars per year and the others wera
fourteen dollars.

Materials from the ald church were used in the
construction of the new. Father Godez himself
danated the Main Altar. The parishicners wera also
generous in their eontributions, Subsoiplions totalad
54, 06066, and the loan taken out for $1,080 was
paid within the year,

Although the church was not yet completed,
its first Mass was calebrated on Christrmas Dy in
1874, It was September 5, 1875, hefore Dedication
Day greeted Bishop Caspar Henry Borgass and
hundreds of parishioners and well-wishars, After an
aarly Mass said by Father Godez, quasts were treated
to a delicious lunch and refreshiments of all kinds
i geeodd quality and quantity.” The Bishop said &

Pontifical Mass, dedicated the church, and officiated at

the Confirmation ceremany, In the evening, & vespers
service ended the day on a serane and inspiring note,

10

Within the next cougle of years, the graves in
the cemetery beside the church were moved to the
marthern end of the parish property where Br, Esper
hiad donatad anather four acres of land, Schaefer
Road, which cut through betwean the Horger farm
and the parish property, later eovered part of the
area of the old cematary.

It weas 1879 before work was finally completed
on the burial ground, The previous year's church
report tallied fourteen dollars fior the sale of
cameatery lots and eight dollars and fifty cents for the
sale of single graves. Rapair of the fence around the
graveyard had cost fiftean dollars and fifty cents,

Joys and Sorrows

Ir'- 1HED, the parish — now officially locstad in
Springwells which had annexed the southern
part of Greenfield — consistad of 50 landowners
and 10 renters,” Twao Sisters of 5t Agnes cama that
vear from their Fond du Lac motherhouse to teach
at St. Alphonsus School. These first nuns were
Sister Ludgard Hoefler, Superior, and a postulant,
Margaret Quint, who became known as Sister Cosma.
Thair EE|-EIr"||' wias three hundrad dollars a wear, plus
whatever parishioners might bring from their farms
in the form of edible bonuses. Their home was the
sacond fleor of the school building,

Father Godez was the first priest in the dincese
to calebrata his Golden Jubilee. The parish feted him
an August 24, 1881, As records shaw he was
ordained in Austriz on July 20, 1832, when he was
thirty years old, The celebration was a bit premature,
but that didn"t dampan the enthusiazm of tha
pastor's well-wishers and the joy of the ceramonies,
Bishop Borgess celebrated Mass at 10 a.m, in
St. Alphomsus Church; Father Friedland of
Gt. Joseph's, Detroit, preached the serman, That
same day the new 121-pound bell was consecrated,

When Father Goder was stricken with an
illness in January, 1BE3, he was given the last
sacramants by Father Bernard Wermers of
St, Boniface, Detrait, and the Papal Absolution by
Bishop Borgess, He passed away on January 14
and was buried in the parish cemetery where his
gravastone, near the church he had built and near
the northern end of the cemetery, stands as a silemn
tribaute o thi great service he performed for his
flock,



A zide view af the sehool huiding cosipleted during Fatker Chawibelle's pastorale,
1862, with the corvent addivien bl wrder the direction of Farher Pleilip Spies, Tsse,

Fathar Wermers, execulor of Father Godez's
will, then bacame administratar of the parish until
Warch whan the Reverand Jerome (Higronymaous)
Henkell, @ Capuchin priest of the Milwaukea
province, assumied the pastorate, From thet time
until 1887, the Capuching from St. Bonaventure's
Monastery on Wi, Elliot — established that same
vear, 1883 — took care of the parish. They would
work in their own community during the waeek,
stay in the parish rectory for the weekend, and be
driven back o Detroit by a parishicner on Monday
mrming, Since they were priests sarving mekions
all over the country, it was ot unusual for the parish
to hawe a substitute pastor on any given Sunday.

Father Henkell, # bearded and corpulant
young man known for his sense of humor, barely
had tima to see the completion of his first project -
the repainting of the sanctuary — before he was
rpplaced by Father Anastasius Duckgeischel, wiho
wwas gided by three other Capuching — Father Patar
Damian Stark, Father Ignatius Wirich, and Father
Stephen Sack.

Father Sack was appainted pastor in August of
1885, but three months later the patlorate was
assumed by Father Raphael Urnstaetter, He was
responsible for the organization of a Young Ladies’
Sodality in March of 1386,

During the tenure of Father Philip Spies,
which began in May of that year, a society for
married men, the Fraternity of the Sacred Heart of
Josug, wes established. The younger men wara

arganizad into the Young Men's Sacred Heart Society
in 1888,

He organized the Archeonfraternity of the
Most Holy and Immaculate Heart of Mary for the
Conversion of Sinners, Then he directed the
building of a new comvent, which was atteched 1o
the south side af the school building, The upstairs
liwing quarters were convertad into more class
rosoms, furnished with long tables and benches
which served as communal desks,

There were just four grades in the school; it
wias in session for ome hundred and sixty-six days per
school year, although many students lost time due
to farm chores, the difficulty of traveling long
distamces on inclement days, and illness, Enrollmant
for the year of 1894-1895 was sixty-four. Subjacts
were catechism, Bible histary, German reading,
English reading, spelling, arithmeatic, and geography.

The new hall inspired the arganization of a
Dramatic Cleb, which specialized in German plays —
meatly in the melodramatic vein. In a rehearsal, one
of the players, young Leonard Esper, was accidentally
killerd, There are two versions of the tragedy, One
zays that & supposedly empty gun was fired at him;
the ather, blames it on a stunt with an
axi.

The church wis beautifully redecorated in
1892 with green interior walls and the installation
of stained-glass windows fashioned by Friedrich and
Staffin of Detroit. Two years later the twin Esper
brothers, Peter and Michael, said their first Masses

v Fimared)
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Father Anastagies Duckeeivchel, (081, with &iz sister,
wiho serped ar fis housekeeper, J883-1 8835,

irn their home parish, They were ordained as priests
of the Sociaty of 5t Sulpice, Father Gaary’s book
SaYya:

The old church was sery hapey that day
name was the fruil of almiost hadf a century of
struggle, Tar Priestly sacations from a Parish
mark that Parish as hawing come of ags and as
oni that s full @l Geace. 11 was fitting too
that the fiest wocations came from the Tamily
that so gracicusly bent it5 homa 1o Father
Schasfiler and Fathar Glaunach in darker daye,

That chapter in the parish history closed with
these words;

On June B_ 1857, Fathar Philip Spies, O.F.M
Cap,, sabd his last Sunday Mase a3 Pastar ol
&t, Alphonsus and gawe First Cammunion to that
year's ¢lass, Ha calnbrated a Wedding Mass on
Monday, Jume 7, and much 19 the sarras af the
p=igie, lgft 5, &lpncnsus.

This kindly Capuchin, a tall man with balding
pate and a long gray beard, passad away at the age
of sixty-seven on Decamber 6, 1906, At the time,
ha was pastor of a small parish, 5t Joseph, near
Wit Calvary., He had contracted prsumonia while on
a sick call.

14

Reveremd Philip Spies, (FM
Popror TSE4-1 80T

A Learned Leader

0 r =an gain great insight into the peronality
of St. Alphonsus’s next pastor by reading a
saries of pocket-sized directories he had published
in the first few years of the twentieth century, The
Reverend Anthony J. Buschsenmann, a diocesan i
priest, was @ beamed man who promoted reading
among his flock, He provided, mainly through his
comn weritings, same interesting food for thought in
these directories, including essays on Resding, Fear
of Death, The Catholic Priesr, How To Be Happy,
and The Church Colection.

In the last-named article, he wrote:

Tha erdinary collection is protusaly
patraniesd by mall coin. The great Aererican
copper if nowhare more in ite slemant. 1 hene
it mn infusion of pickal ancd a suspicion of sl
bait tha mailtitude, the common mass, 1S copoar
by @ large magosity . . . Dur suggestion is nat
less copper, But: “More coppers.”



Thie add rocrarp @ the wiptor af JO0G

Twrines, Perer g Wichaeel Feper, soid
their first Masses ar S0 Alpbornes e 1804,

The Jewel Of The Diocese

FﬁthEl Buechsanmann, a native of Germany, was
fifty-one when he came to Soringwells afer an
gighteen-yiEar pastorate in Mosth Dorr. His great
enthusiasm for the priestly life and his meticulows
record-keeping laft a still-appreciated store of
documents accumulated during ks twenty-thres
yaars of service bo the Parish of 5t Alphonsus.

Immediately upon his arrival on June 14,
1897, he was confronted with a problem that had
b successfully forestalled for the past year by
Father Spies. The Sisters of 5t Agnes were leaving,
Their Fond du Lac Suparior, Sister Mary Agnes,
falt she could no longer spare the Speingwalls
teachers, She said, "Since there are so many Orders
in the neighborhood, it won't be hard to pet ather
tiacknrs, "

Father Buachsenmanm anxiously appealed to
Rishaop Fq;lla,:'!,r to coeinee the Sisters (o Slay. LatEr,
he wrote in his journal: “The Bishop said, "They will
not g, but thay went.” In the school, thers were
hetweaen fifoy amd sicty children,

By the time school reapened on September 1,
18497, the good pastor had employed thrae Sisters
of St Dominic from Adrian, Sister M, Alberta,
Superior, taught the upper four grades; Siater M,
Christinag — whio, after her initial three-year stint,
returned twice again to 5t. Alphonsus — taught the
yvounger children and directed the choir, Sister M,
Stanislaus servad as cook, oo rrued)

16



My soul fongs for Thee,
O Lord more than watchmen
wailt for the dawn,

P 1307







s weas still & Garman country parish
primarily concernad with farming, Families were
working units, and the parishioners fearmied a
larger family under the roof of their church. Indeed,
many of themn were related to each other by blood
as well, with the names Bochmer, Esper, Hellmer,
Horger, Korte, Meckeal, Schasfer, Schiaff, Taubitz,
Termes Terns, Theisen, and Wittershaim, each
appearing a dozen tirmas or more in the parish rolls
of tha day. The directory for 19031904 lists seventy
Espiers ard eighty-three Theisens.

Societias were numarous and active, Parish
picmics held in Cehaefer's Growe — jum in back of the
old Schaefer Inn on the northeast cormer of Michigan
and Schaefer — drew an enthusiastic crowd, even on
& weekday, and brought a handsoma profit to the
parish coffers.

The spirit of unity that prevailed at
51, Alphonsus during the prosperous days around
the turn of the century con be best expressed in the
words of Father Buechsenmann, who stated in his
journal after only ona year of service hare:

In genaral, tha people o to Communion sery
regularly and they attend Divine Sarvice wall. By
the and of the year it wss proven o me that the
paresh is Tull of life and segoer, A gemidlng Cathiolo
sgaiit pravalls hare and modern Liberadism hag
found no entrance. Our Youth is pious and
unspailed, Faliglous socinties are hlassoming
and & marked zeal shaws itself in them. The
Parish school is gerercesly suppormad and thi
walvsla parish lowes its Ghuroh and honors it 45 its
mnst precious possession o ., . | Pave ssan for
mysell mows that what an old Priest ocnos saed to
e i i "Springwells is the Jewel of the
Diacess.”

Srill Building

0 n Friday, October 10, 1902, Bishop John
Samuel Foley colebrated a Pontifical Mass at
10 am, in S, Alphonsus Church to celebrate the
parish's Goblden Jubilee, With the Bishop at the
altar weve tha Ternes brothers, Father &nthomy and
Father Peter, and the Esper twins, Father Peter and
Father Michaal, Father Seybolt of St Josaph’s
Church in Wyandotte deliverad the sermon, and
thirty other priests were among the worshippers in
the croweded sanctuary.

O Wadnesday, Ootober 15, there was a
Requiem Mass for all deceased parishioners. That
evening, a supper and a show in the parish hall rang
dioen the curtain on the happy commemoration of
fifty wears of blessings as a Christian community.
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Reverend Arifony
Huechrenmane

Mongignor falim 8 Mics
Father Fuechsenmang
wATE fucceednd by
Muongiznor Mier,

The: parish was fifty vears old and the rectory
was not misch wounger, |t dafinitely needed
replacement and Father Buschsenmann made that
his mext project,

When asked 1o donate toward the rectory
construction, parishionsrs had subscribed threo
thousand dollars immediately. With the additsonal
melp of their labor, @and the hauling being daone by
their horse angd ox carts, no debi was incurred.,

The formal dedication was hald on February 14,
1805, in spite of terrible weat ber ™

During the construction pericd — on Sunday,
Jure 12, 1904 — a break weas taken for the
celebration of Fathar Buachsanmann’s Silvar Jubilea
of Ordination, & High Mass and banguer, complete
with an effusive thank-you speech, was followed by
a party in the parish hall. This was the perfect
apportunity for the people of 5t Alphonsus to
show their appraciation to a man they had come to
love,

He was a strict Father 1o tham, but it was
always abwiows that their pastor had their salvation
i mind. His sermons were so enlightening and
livaly, aven thouwgh long, that there were few
worshippers who would find Fi,l-l]|'.. pem when &
ten o'clock Mass lasted until ane.



Father Geary tells us:

Dlowsn the years of Fathar BuRchsgnmann's
peatorate, he was 2 beloved and welcome gisest
at every home in the parish, 1T was no unwsosl
gighil 1o sea him followad by oroweds of childoen
siriding alorg the mueddy Schaglar Road o the
grove andl park behind the Schaefer Inn. He
carad little For msney o linanca, but was deeply
concarned ahowt his people, sven o the poing ol
farkidding them to 81tend a dance sponsaorad by
a neighbacing parish. He quoted the Council of
Baltimaore which forbade parish danses, Waltzas
wanre very popular han, and there weres many
stises conmected with the dances, even though
thay were beld under parish auspices. The Irith
I 00 dlarics and kept it up, much Lo Lhe
displaasure of the Bishops and the Garrman
pastirs.

War Years

Tu-. ‘Teans brought great changes o

St. Alphonsus Parish as well a5 to the rest of
the world, At the start of the “War to End All
Wars,"” real estate investors, such as Robert Oakman,
were buying up the farms of Springwells and sub-
divicding them into city lots. By 1920 the Ford
tractor plant had been moved fram West Dearborn
to the site of the Ford Eagle Boatveorks on the
Rouge River in Springwells. An area building boom
was in full swing, To prevent annexation by their
mushrooming neighbor, Detroit, and to ensure
taxation of the Ford plant, Springwells was then
incorporated as a village, While "the boys™ were
overseas ‘rmaking the world safe for democracy,”
thase at home were transforming pastoral country
scamery into a bustling suburh,

The war brought a great deal of sadnes to the
peopla of St. Alphardes, bath for themselves and
for those they still knew and loved in Germany,

Thase were hard years in the personal life of
Father Buechssnmann, alse. His sister, whin had
nevar married and had served as réctory housekeapar
throwghout his pastorate, died in 1812, Fortunately,
he had some help from 1915 to 1920, from Father
Cyprian Alber and from two companions wiho stayed
at the rectory at different times. They were Father
Shamansky, a friend rather than an appointes, and
Father John Helten, who sarved as Father
Buechsenmann’s eyes in 1919 and 1920 when the
oldar priest's sight and health were both failing,
Records intdicate that Father Helten unafficially
seryed as “wicarius substitutus® at least for the final
year of Father Buechsenmann's tenura at
St Alphonsus,

i .ﬂ.Aui.':

4 frort view af the old church

When the pastor left in Dacember of 1820, he
spent a briel time with relatives, Mr. and Mrs, Joseph
Henn, whe lived at the southeast cormer of Warren
and Neckel. Then Bishop Michael Jamas Gallaghes
visited him thare, and recommended that the ailing
priest be tramslerred 1o 8 hospital.

The last yvears of Father Buechsenmann's life
were spent in the care of the devoted Sisters of
Li. Josaph at Mew Borgess Hoapital, Kalamazoo.,
When he died in June, 1927, his remains were laid
to rest imoa erypt in the hospital cemetery.

A New School

I he Reverend John Siegired Mies came 1o
St. Alphonsus in the month of his forty-ninth

birthday in Fabruary, 1821, A native of Germany,
he had come to Detrait with his parents at the age
eIy
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of seventesn, With his (llustrious background a: a
priest, his accomplishments in a birief twio years at
Springwells were no surprise.

He first turned his attention 1o the eraction of
a new school on a site that would be away from the
traffie of busy Warren Svenue, With this in mind,
he purchasad fifteen lots from the Robert Oakman
Land Company Aviation Field, a tract that had
saryed a5 a landing strip during the World War.,
Father Geary's book tells us:

Thee forst Tlood was to be a hasll For parich uss
and Thess wara faur schoolrooene and thrae
muglc raams on the second flaar, This the narth
half of the presant school, including the cantar
wnil.

Tha [brick] building [200 fant long and
00 fpet weiche with a haight af 42 feer] is locatad
a1 the sastern gnd of the church proparty atout
halfwiny betwesn Warran and Gauld. Fathe Miss
had perrmitted the city o put Gould throwgh the
rhurch property and had maved the cernetary
back to make way far the new strest, On Sunday,
Saprernbar 24, 1922 Bishop Gallagher e 10
st. Alphonsus far Canfirmation and to selamnly
dedicare tha rewr school, Father bdies had
anrounced an the Sunday pravious 1thel the
blessing @1 the naw school is & lestive accasion
that shiowld be celebrated, ard he saw 1o it that
it wins. Msny periests attendad and a dinner tor
the clergy was given at § o'clock. A SUpPET WS
servacl far the entire garish at 7:30 a1 $2.00 8
plate . . .

In Movermnbser of 1922, Father Mies arranged
for o Mission at St Alphonsus — a weaek for the men

and a week for the women, This was the final sarvice

Father Mies rendered St Alphonsus Parish, for in
December, 1922, he was transferred to 5t John the

Evangelist, Detroit. There he bwilt the present church

naxi o the hospital on Grand Boulavard,

Building Again

I n January of 1923 a fair, hamdsome, open-
faced young man was appointed to the
pastarate of Springwells Parish that now embracad
about two hundred families and was rapidly growing
with tha biossoming of the surrcunding suburb.
The Reverend John Sloysius Klich, who had ot
only been Assumption College’s star pitcher, but
had taught Latin and German while still a student
there, had been ordained by Bishop Folay in

55. Peter and Paul Cathedral on the Fourth of July,
1909, His most recent pastorate had been at

5t Mary's, Balding. In his five yvears thera, he als
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tended its two missions in Marian and in Smyrma,
remadelad the Marion chureh, built a new ong in
Belding, and “conguerad the former anti-Catholicism
of that small Protestant town,” He maintained his
reputation as a go-getter through nineteen yaars af
diented service to St Alphonaus Parish.

Father Klich’s first concern was the living
quarters of the Sisters. They were still residing in
the old school and certainly deserved better. The
sehool enrollment — and the number of Sisters
teaching there — had continued o grow steadily.
The “convent” had grown older and more cramped,

Arthur DesRosiers was asked to design a
Gothic-style convent o accommodate twenty-four
Gisters. Located an the southeast corner of Gould
anvd Schacter, this spacious building was provided
with every modern convenience of the day. A
nawspaper description stated:

Thia walls of a mingled shad-red brick are
laiel up in an Engligh bond. The building i
trimmed with limastana, and the main antrance,
all grane, |5 of a particularly refinad Gothic
character and featires a niche worked inla tha
dntail af the window abowe the dogs. The plan
prowides eamemunity rooerd, libiany, chapel,
mMuse rooms, and servios reoms, and has langs
5i1ting porches retired from the street. The
uilding is roofed with Reavy graan siate.

By the time the Sisters mowvad into the new
conwent, Father Klich was planning an addition to
the school, alse straining &t the seams. He would
employ, but in reverse, the same plan for this
southern flank as Father Mies had used for the
northern end of tha building.

Thie additiom was completed in 1926, and
was alle to serve the graduation ceremonies of the
first St. Alphonsus High School students in June of
1927, Graduates were: Benedict Henn, Jobin
Karpinski, Mary Horger, Catherine ('MNeill, and
Lavima Eichmer.

The beautiful new auditorium which was
completed in 1926 afforded far more space for
Sunday Mass than did the old church, That year’s
Christrmas Eve Midnight Mass was celebeated thera,
Fear the next faw months, the children’s Mass was
said thare. Finally, all church services were
conductied in the school auditorium, and the
Blessed Sacrament was raserved thers,



Father Fodm Kiich veaag appainred pastor in 7827

U1 lowe these fintle people, and @00 or o SRS fhing
willien ey e gee go freat froon God, lore yg ™

fCharfes Dickens)

Looking Alead

I n the meantime, Springwells hed become a

city in 1924 and adopted a new nama —
Fordson — tha following year. The ariginal Village
president, Charles Horger, and the Mayar of Fordson,
Joseph Karmann, were both parishioners of

L. Alphonsus. On January 8, 1929, Fordson

merged with Dearborn as the City of Dearborn —
ancther maasure to pratect thermselves from annexa-
Ligan by Detroit.

The: area wias booming; it was a8 Prosperaus era,
Large-scale parish building plans were undertaken
withoul hesitancy — without any perception of tha
Degrascion abmged,

In 19285, the parish was 576,000 in deht, The
schinal addition, completed in 1926, added another
F00,000 debit, Seven more lots, at & total cost of
$16,210, ware purchased from the Robart Qakman
Land Company in June, 1927,

This location at tha nortkern limits of the
parish complex and with frontage on Calkaun
wias tor e the site of the newe charch, at an
estimated E300,000, and the new rectory, at an
estimated 545,000, In 1928, a loan was taken for
5300000, and for that yvear thers was 3 tota
indebtedness of $250 000,

. =3
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With the establishment of St. Luke's Parish in
the same yaar, the boundaries of 5t, Alphonsus were
again reduced, as they had been in earlier years
for 5t Clement’s, 5t, Christophear’s, and S5t. Barbara’s
Parishes,

And Srill Building
Father Gaary"s history 1ells ws:

Cn Mionday, Spril 11, 1838, groursd ywas
broken for the new church, M. Pater Theisen
head tha hanor af turning the first sod, AT this
time there were GO0 families in 1he parish and
800 children in the school, Father Klich wisely
had plannad an a large church 10 scesmmodate
the ewer-growing population. Tha church will
soat 1,780 peaple and tirme has prouen That it o5
still large encugh Tos a parish of 3,000 families.
Thiare s only ore fass when many are compsdlad
to stand — the 1700 — and this could ba
rarmachied IF more woula atiend the sarly Masses,
Thir pioneer farmess of (ke parish insisted on
attarsding High Mass. It was a joy for them to be
thers and 1o help sing the praites of Gad,

Six hundred parishiopers gathered far the
laying af the cormarstone on Sugust 18, 1928,
Bishog Gallagher sttendsd, and twanty -taur
priests, The Knights of £t. Jahn and the Haly
Marmie Sccinty, which Father Klich had started
im the parish, led the procassion to the site.

Haly Fedramer Band sugplied the music.

On May 18, 1830, the neew church was
degicated by Rishap Gallagher. The bishop wes
miet at Miller and Morrows Cisgle by & dalegation
representing all 1ha parish societies, and he wes
ponducted to the church in solamn procession;
Blonsigrdr Meed wai c=lobeant ol tha Solamn Mass,
Fathsar Pater Esper was deacon, and Fathes Risghesl
Esper wias subdeacon, Fatls William Murphog -
the late Bishop Murphy — and Father Charles
Lllanberg were masiers of ceremcnied. Bishap
Gallsgher preached,

Tine dedication book also provides additional
information.

Tha arrangament of the choir is umigues.
The rich Gothic window and the artistic geill-
winrk are spacial teatwres which comrmsand ong's
attantenn, as well as the splendid Austin pipe
pegan, wikich is Tha gitt of tha Haly Mame Society.
Tha blassing af this new Momaorial Organ ook
place on Sunday esening, March 23, 1930, when
thi parishianers gathered o listen 10 8 eacned
concert given by the Haoly Rosary Choir . . . .

The old school had been tern dewn in 1928,
and in 1930 the steeple was ramoved from the old
church — then in use as a gymnasium — because it

witd in ddanger of falling. The 1904 rectory next to
the old church was sarving as a music studio,

Tha new rectory had been completed in March,
19248, It sixteen rooms and three garages afforded
plenty of space for offices and living quarters for the
pastor and his assistants, At that time, Father Klich
wias baing aickedd in his chuties by the Reverend James
0 Brien, who had come to 5t Alphonsus in
January 1927, Fathar Joseph Schramm, 8 young
professor from Sacred Heart Seminary, had been
assisting on weekends since March, 1926, and
continued e do o through 1932,

Father O"Brien was assigned 1o the pastorate of
5t Alphonsus Church, Deerfield, in January, 1832,
Ha waas replacesd in Dearbarn by Father Georgs Kerby
whe quickly bacame known for his beautiful singing
and kis interest in parish societies. 1t was through
his efforts that the Rosary Altar Society was
arganized.

Taoward the end of 1933 Father Herb',.' Wak
transferred to 5t Tharesa in Detroit, and two new
assistants were sent 1o 5t Alphonsus, These were
first appointments for Father John Patrick Wagenar
and Father Morgan Harris, who had been ardained
that June,

Bucking The Tide

On Juna 14, 1934, the entire parish celebrated
with Father Klich the 25th annivarsary of his
ordination to the priesthood. It was a hapgpy
oecasion, The party-goers turned their conversation
to fond reminissences and tried to forget the troubled

times thiey wers now BExXperiencing.
But A Carrtury of Conguest tells us:

Thi splendid progress of 51, Alphansus Parish
was greatly affacted by @ retianal crisis which
brpaght paverty and ruin to the wihels cauntry in
Ociober of 1925, Bank failures, millions of
upermployed warkers, and gilent factorias could
rat but mean & kalt in the material growth of any
parish imoan industrizl ares, and, althosgh 1he plans
for 1The meve chiurch werg pushed to o successiul
ponclusian, it was with g heawvy hest 1hat the
waliamt Father Klich noved the misary of his
pecnda and tha graat unpayable delb incurred in
so mmuch nescessary bailding.

Mo ang willl ever know the wsarry that
hurdered his hesrt during the critical yaars
batvseen 1930 and 1938, During thass cruciad
wanrs, Fathar Kilach did not neglect his beloved
schiopl. Every day he was seen 81 the playgrouind —
wiith his inevitable pipe — Follgwed by “Doks,™
the Beston Bulldog, who gwen accampanied the
pastor inte the classrooms.
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Father Kilicte with meermbers of the Uehers Olub (o 19246

Faihier Elich wai alvedys weloarms a0 The play-
ground where he used 10 ba surrounded by
children. He had provded an gxcell=nt playground
T ther, comgrlpte with Svaings, foernry-go-rsunds,
and tepter-totiers. There were tennis courts an
Lk e th eod 01 thie sehaol groweds, and Thess
waard 2wy s wall used. Dur:ng thipse yvaars,

Mr. Jeseph Falls dirscled the men's choir and
arganirad a lineg boys" cheir,

Thie Sisters trained the children to sing their
ot Bags an sehaakifays, The sohoa oy Degan
with MMags at B:00 and wae to the student wha
weaad latal Ir wans alyays A insgiring thing 10 e
the children on the playground stap afl they wene
dairg wihen the Sl rang amd make the sy of
rha crioss, say the Angelus, genuflecting at the
worde, “Aad the Word woas rrsds Flesh snd dweelt
amaoreg ws,'" and then return to their play, The
wrder and discipline in the school gave eloguent
rastimony to the diligance af the Sisters who
muade 31 Alphonsus one of the best schools of
the Dincesa,

Assistanee From The Assisianis

O n the evening of April 7, 1936, tha residents of
St Alphonsus's rectary suffered 3 harrowing
experience, It bBagan a1 about nine a'clock whan two
armed man called on the rectory and held up

Father Klich, wha had angwered the doorball, A
gunpaoint, they then foreed him, as weall a3 the
housekeapar, Mrs. Robertson, and her son, Roman,
into the basement, Whan Father Wagenar came

deswn to insvestigate the disturbance, he wis also
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grabbed by the thieves, All four wictims were then
bownd.

Lpan overhaaring the disturbance, Father
Harriz left his upstairs room, ducked through
the I'H,1||5.|:1|-:-e:|:-|1|:1"'$ ouariers, oul awindow, over the
garage roeof, and then jumped down into the
cemetery., After climbing the fence, he ran ta the
saryice station on the corner of Gouwld and Schagfer
to call the paolice,

Sergeant Linshan and Officers Kesske, Riava
and Bell responded to the call. Officer Eerska
entered the rectary and headed for the basemant
wwhier e he noticed Father Klich, Father W.ilgl:nl:r' and
Mrs, Robertson and son ted lagether with rope
Though ons of the thegs fired two shats from a
sholgurn over the officer’'s head, the officer could not
raturn The Tire Tor Tear ol kit ing tha four tied
tagether. Ona man tisd to sscape by way of tha
garage door but was wounded by one of Officer
Bell's six shots, and arrested. The second holdup
man eacaped by going out through the basemant
windoner.

Father Klich later said that one of the thieves
was a man whom he had helpad when he was still a
pastor at Belding,

The two assistants who had shared Father
Klichs holdup experience were transferred in 1935
and 1240, Father '.I'l.'agl-_'ru':'r weak semlt 1o Holy ﬂ:-'r_lssl
Marine City, in July, 1939, and two years later
entered the Mavy as a chaplain, Mo was replaced by
Father James Dolan, Father Harris weas transferraed



in Juna, 1940, to 51, Matthew, Detroit, and his
placa was taken by Father Francis Dietz, who had
just beens ordained by Archbishop Mooney. This
very bovish-looking yourny priest became very active
in promaoting Cana and pre-Cana grograms at
St Alphonsus, and also started an infarmation class.
Then, in July, 1941, Father Lawrence Des
Longchamps was transferred to 5t. Mary's Parish in
Wayna, This chubby young priest had sereed at
St Alphongus since the time of his ordination six
wears earlier. He was “a favarite among students,”
Mow he was replaced by anothar newly orodained
priest, Father Sylvestar YWan Tiem,

Sad Times

I n 1940, there were thirteen hundred families

in the parish, representing some five thousand
people. Although about a third of the parish families
were unable to support thar chiurch financilly,
parish debt was slowdy being reduced. Parish income
in the years 1938 through 1940 had averaged sixty
thousand dollars. Indebtednass stood at 5371,000,
including o mortgage of S300,000.

The following year, 1941, saw the war in
Europe escalate into a second world war. Thare
were gight hundred and thirty-twe voung people who
Ieft the parish to join the armed services, The parish
ket in touch with these young men and womemn, and
prayad for their satety,

During these troubled times, Father Klhich and
his assistants had helped to build a number of parish
organizations, and their ranks were a great source of
imspiration to the people and their priests. Maorg
than a dozen groups responded to a variety of
intarests and concerns in the pansh.

Father Klich spent his fifty-eighth birthday,
Fridlay, March &, 1942, sriously ill at Mt Carmal
Hospital, Two days later he died, leaving a shocked
and grieving parish, He had servad 5t Alphonsus tor
nimetesn of kis thirty-three yvears as a priest, The
furneral on Wednesday, March 17, weas attended by
twe hundred end fifty priests, Archhishop Moonay
prasided.
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Righop Gallagher presided ar the Loying of e
caraeraae for new chuech in Awgust, JRIE

Crganizing and Beautifyving

I m the interim Father Dolan was appointed
addministrator, He and Fathar Diete and
Father Wan Tierm cared for the parish until & new
pastor could b= chosen.

The Revarend William P, Schulte was
appointed pastor on &pril B, 1842, & retired
Lieutenant Colonel [chaplaing of the National
Guard, he had seen APy sarvice overseas in
Warld War |, He had just complated fifteen
yiears a8 pastor of 5t, Elizabeth in Detroit, where
he hied surceeded his uncla, the Reverend
Anthony Ternes. Father Schulte had been the
first Director of the Eucharistic Leaguwe, sérving
from 1920 1o 1935, He had also served as State
Chaplain of the American Legion, Mational Chaplain
of the Forty and Eight, and State Chaplain of tha
Knights of Columbus. In 1938 his old friend,
Archbishop Mooney, had made Father Schulte a
Consultor, When the Archbishop began the
Archdiocesan Devalopment Fund, he chosa
Fathier Schulte as one of 13 organizers and directors.

ihen this deveted priest came to 5t Alphonsus
he set about crganizing the office procedures to
include the most modern technigues of dual indexing
af church records and classification of church cénsus,
Tha systemn of financial support which he inauguratad
— invalving boxes of numbered envelopes and an
amnual statermeant mailed 1o each parishioner — made
saliciting unnecessany,
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Honsipnor Willlem Perer Schulie
Fograr (9420056

The official parish newspaper, Tha
S Alpharrsus fewes, wias given a mew look amd a
new name — e Vaice

The pastor’s labors were rewarded in Auwgust,
1944, when he was named a Domestic Prelate with
the title of Right Reverend Mansignar.

Another hard workar, the Beverond Goeorge
Stromeke, had come 1o 5t. Alphonsus in October,
1243, whan Fathar Dolan was transferred to the
pastorate of 5t Anthony's Church, Temperanca,
This hefty young man seas a great Tavorite of the
young people and during his six years in the parish
b2 arganized and directed one of tha most
suceassful O 0, programs in the city,

More physical changes baautified the parish
complex in 1945, Firss, the Detrait Stained Glass
Warks was commissioned to install nine clerestary
windowes and one transept window &t & cost of
315812, Mo loan was taken for this, The
beautiful windows are so dasigned that the church
is always filled with light, In stunning colors they
|!|E|.'ri|2l the life of baius and H:_lr',' and provide an
inspirimg remindar of the mysteries of the rosary,

Muxt, o stone crucifixion group was erected
in the cematery inmemary of the thirty-four
parish harpes who had died for America in
World War 11, This statue was placed near the stone
cross that marks the grave of Monsignor Schulte's
mather, Although the memarial cost ten thowsand
dollars, it too wats purchased without benefit of
H] |-:_:|:’|l1r

Im the meantime, Father Dietz had bean
transferrad io S5 Veronica, East Detroit, and was
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replaced in March by Father Thomas Schimitt, wheo
had been ordained the month before,

Monsignor Schulte became sariously ill that
sumimer when be svent away with tha Mational
Guiard to Grayling, He gpent some time in the
hospital before he could resume his duties at
St. Alphonsus, He remained in poor health, but
contineed to work without complaing, Fathers
Gieary s history says of him;

He is a great frignd of prissts and thems (s no
prriesn walsi gver visitsd the reclory who did not at
anta fesd at homa with this pastOr with the e
wrivile ard bsarty weslcome. He is 8 friend and
companiaon 10 the prigsts wha heldp him — alaays
willing 1o chat with them without that cloak of
regErys or gignily so elften affected by those in
authiority. His mend s span 10 nesw ideas — e
readily permits his sssistants to suggest and carry
through plang for parsh arganizatsene,

Devenied Priesis And People

I b newly ordaired Reverend Jasper Sirianmi
rEp|a|}Efl Father Wan Tiem in Nowem her, 19485,
He is mainly remambered for spearheading an arch

dictesan-wide Haoly Mame Society membership drive
that browght enrollment in the organization to over

eleven hundred men. The school was another of his
pet projects,

When Father Stromske was transferrad to
5t. Elizabath, Detroit, in June, 1948, Father
Charles Kraus came to take his plage. Father
Kigus's "spacialties™ were 1he parish newespapaer and
thie athletic program,

Im June, 1950, Father Schmitt was sent to
Cur Lady of Good Counsal, Detrait, and Father
Cyrril Raneourt came to St Alphansus from
51. Boniface, Detroit. He and Father Kraus worked
hard to put the parish amang the leaders in the
Archdiocesan Development Fund Drive. He was
alen & graat inspiration to the Holy Name Society,

That same fall, the Passionist Fathers of
St. Paul Monastery, Datroit, led a successful mission
at S, Alphonsus, These dedicated prigsts had been
great friends of the parish for many years and were
always willing to coma whan called.

Mot only in such drives &5 that for arch-
diotesan development, but in all vital areas, the
people of 5t, Alphaoniss continued to maintain &
reputation for generosity. A naw furnace was
installed imv the school in 1248, Mo loan was
necassary for this saventesn-thousand-dollar
improvement,



The 1950

D uring the 195%0's heavy damands were placed
an parishes everywhere to provide a stability
rmissing durimg the war years, 51, Alphonsus
responded with a pericd of growth and development,

Hawing no prassing financial problems, the
parish gave five thowsand dollars in April of 1951 to
tha fledgling Parish of St, Bernadette, Dearborn, to
help it got started,

On Sunday, June 3, 1957, Revaerand Thormas
F. Esper, son of Mr, and Mrs, Anthony M. Esper,
celebrated his first Solemn High Mass at
St. Alphonsus. His brother, Reverend Clement J.
Esper, who had been ordained in 1941, served as
Archpriest. Rewerend George Esper, 8 ocousin, was
presant in the sanctuary with Monsignor Schulte.
Rawerend Henry Willerat, Raverend YWalter
Markowicz, and Reverend John C, Ayan assisted,

The Feast of the Precious Blood in 1951 had
more than its wsual significance. 1t marked the
forty-fifth anniversary of Monsignor Schulte’s
ardination to the priesthood, the last nine years of
which had been spent at St. Alphonsus. To
cormmemorata the avant the parish pined in 8
High Mass of Thanksgiving in tribute to and
prayers for the Monsignor,

It weas also at this time that another priest
was making & narme for himself. This one had an
“angal™ wiho erased his blackboard an television
every Twesday evening. Bishop Fulton J, Sheen,
besides osting his talevision show, weis appointed
Mational Director for the Propagation of the Faith,
I this capacity, on August 12, 1951, he made his
first mission appeal in the Archdiocese of Datroit at
St. Alphonsus Parish. Tha Bishop preachad at all
the Masses in bebalf of the Missions and the
parishicners” response amounted to gver fiva
thowsand dollars, due in part 1o the presenca of
ViSO,

When Father Sirianni, after nearly fve years of
sarvica 1o the parish, was transferred to St. Ignatius,
Detroit, im June of 1851, he was replaced for the
summear by Father Rabert Monticella, When ha left
irn Detober, Father Maurice Geary eame 1o Till his
position,

Within a few short months, Father Geary was
raguesting intarmition and photographs eovering
the years 1B52-1952 for inclusion in A Canfury OF
Ciarvpoest, o parish history that weould be part of tha
Centennial to be celebrated eight months hance.

It was this book that provoked reminiscence and

Arreiie Mook, Dvlorey Reed v, Sally Ready ewd
Arrg Lewis pose with penrenniad vake, o replice
af flee ol cherch,

served as & reminder of the great progress that had
b=en made, not only during the first century of the
lite of 5t Alphonsus Parish, but within the peeviouws
decade, Where there had baen about six hundrad
familias in 1942 thera wers now three thousand,
devout and zealous as their forefathers had been in
the ohservance ot their Faith.

One week alter his ardination as a Maryknall
Missionary, Revarerd J, Harvey Tessier, son of
Urban Tessier, celebratad his first Solemn High Mass
at 5t. Alphonsus on June 22, 1952, Monsignor
Schulte, Fathar Huksere Ma no, Father Johm Zwers,
Father Maurice Decker, and Father Edward Blaza
assistad. Father Tessier was subsaguently missicned
to Peru.

With the Centennial just three months away,
on Jume 39, Father Geary isswed a final plea Tor
rraterial fior the parish history, remind ing the people,
“This will be cur Centannial Book amd wa won't
have another for a hundred vears.”

Then 1 SE'p-TEmb-l-er. ore manth before the
Cne Hundredth Amniversary, Fathers Kraws and
Ramcaurt, by will of the Bishop, ware transferred.
Father Lawrence Hameal and Father Bay mond
Maibarger cams to raplace them, Most of the
respansibility for the Centennial and for the
building program mowe Tell 1o Father Hamel as a
result of Monsignor Schulte’s failing health,

| thie sEmee iEue of The YWoree that
announced the transfer of Father Rancourt and
Father Kraus, an appeal wwas made to the parish
on behalf of the Cantennial, “Lat's make the world
notice that this is only our first one hundred youors
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and that thera is no cailing on our progress. Help
with the Centennial by giving a donation next
Sunday to detfray luncheon and enteriamnment
expenses. This is your parish — it's proud of you,
Are you proud of it?

When the day came, ODetober 12, 1952, the
Centennial Mass was offered in the presance of
His Excellency, Most Reverend Allen J, Baboock at
11:00 a.m, Celebrant was Reverend George Esper,
assisted by Reverends Clement Espar, Thomas Esper,
Leonard Partensky, Walter Markowicz and Cyril
Rancourt,

Aftar the Solemn High Mass the priests were
sarver dinner at the Shores Cale, Benediction
followed at 3:00 pm, An Opan House characiernizead
by “many axhibits and plentiful refreshments,” was
kald on the school graunds fram 1:00 to :00 pom,

New Grade Schoal

F.is.‘t an the heels of the Gentannial came the
requast “to get behind cur Building Program.”
5t Alphanius was not unigque. The “Baby Boom'™
alvar World War |1 placed demands on most parishes
{ar miore classrooms 1o provide for the Catholic
aducation of the increasing numbsers of children.
Plans for a new school were well umdar way,

hut funds were nesded 1o begin corElrucTion.

Thus, the faithful were reminded to honor their
pledges — “Detroit and Dearborn knoss albout our
plans o build. ANl eves are on us 1o sae whaether we
ara just talking or building.” “Cash is mast welcoma,
pledigas arg most welcome as long as they are paid,
The parish that builds togathar, stays together.” By
Movember 9, pladges amounting 19 eighty-gight
thopusand dollars had been received, The goal was
£760,000.

Howegwer, with faith in the people and
pancern for the children, Monsignor Schulte turned
the first spadeful of dirt, on November 23, 1952,
initiating @ bwo-Eart exXpansion program of 8 new
algmartary school and a gymnasium complex. |t
was during this month that the nuns took up
residence in the partially completed new wing of
the conyent,

The drive for funds was still short of the poal,
December found & house-to-house campaign taking
place 1o bolster the Fund Drive, Parishioners were
admaonished, “Do what you can for the Building
Fund, and dan't detain the worker ...

To the joyv of all, Monsignor Walter B, Hardy
prasided at the laying of the cornarstone of the new
schanl and recraation oenter on Sunday aftearnoon,
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April 12,1953, Monsignor Carroll F, Deady,
Superintendent of Parochial Schools, preached.
Mansignor Stanley Skrzyeki was the presiding priest
at Solemn Benediction.

In June of the same year, Reverand John A,
Blazka, son of Mr.and Mrs, John Andrew Blaska,
offered his first Solemn BMass at 5t Alphonsus,
Maonsignor Schulte assistad him, along with
Reawverend Francis ¥. Dietr and Feverend Arthur M.
Karey, Sinca Father Blaska had spent his entire
twsanty-six yodars 43 8 parishioner of 54, Alphansus,
his reception at the Dearborn Inn was an occasion
for a reunion of the graduates of 1945 as well a5 for
parishicners and family Triends,

On the same day, June 7, RBeverand Willam A,
Immel, som af M, and Mrs. A, G, Immel who had
recently moved into the parish, celebrated his first
Solemn Mass at 5t Tharasa, Detrait,

Fund raising for the new school was still very
much a part of the parish's lifie, althowgh 11 was now
takimg on @ numbsar of forms. Since the hiring of the
first Athletic Director, Paul Baulus, in Febriary,
1953, a Sponsors’ Glub had been organized to
support the growing number of athletic teams within
the sehanl, Season passes were available for five
dollars. Procesds want toward better eguipment for
greater pratection and safety,

The Altar and Rosary Sodality annownced
Tuesday Might Bingo Parties to raise money for

When the sl chgrcl war fore down in (934, Farber Mamed
ol Bevpargd Quang fowwd [e corRerainoRe emplp.




equipment far the Domestic Science Boom. The
weormen chserved, “"Our prasant kitchen is inadeguats
for the various socials of the parish, so the new
equiprment will be available for such use, as well."

When the doors of tha new grade school opanad
mn l:lctr:ll;;-Er, TQ‘EE, eight hundred and seventy
youngsters were the first to enjoy the long
anticipated tecilities. In addition to the fifteen
dassropms, & clinic, 2 soundproof music room,
affice space, supply room, and four large washrooms,
the schiool boasted of “a univent in sach class oom,
which controls the changes of air in the reom
theeughout the day; Florescent lighting, celotex
ceilings, and high grade asphalt tile floors, & three-
day open house was declared to enable the
contributors to see what their efforts had wrought.

The following Sunday two hundred men of
the parish agresd o visit every Tamily and o salici
pladges neaded to retira the debit on the new schonl
and to enable work to begin on the Activities
Building. By Movernbar B, two hundrad and thirty
thousand dollars had been raised. [t is interasting to
nota that on the same Sunday two thowsand,
savan hundred dallars had heen collected for The
Missions.

The: Solemn Blessing of the school was held on
Decamber 14, with His Eminence, Edward Cardinsal
Mooney, officiating. A aoverfloaw crowd attended,

The ald rectary and church, which was used as
agqymrasium and later on for grade schaol classooms,
wera torn down in February of the following year
1o make way for the Activities Building, To his
surprize, Father Hamel found that the cornerstone of
the old church was empty - devoid of the usual
memarabilia. The happy note was that the parish
waas oul of debt and the parishioners could take
pride in their accomplishmants, Ones again, their
genarosity and faith wers evidant.

The new yedr opened with the transfer of
Father Geary to St. Banedict, Highland Park, after a
term of twi years here. Az was the custom, a parish
farewell program was held on January 17, 1954, in
the school hall. Father Leonard Makulski, a priest
af some sixteen years expersnce, was formal by
welcomad.

The number of priests caring for 5t. Alphonius
wedts increased to five when Father Robart J.
Fahiibach, 8 newly ordained assistant was welcomed
to the parish an September, TO56, His stay was
short — ten weaks — when he was transferred o
St Mary’s, Wayne, & missionary of the Congregation
of the Immaculate Heart of Mary, Father Charles
Gowvaert, was assigned as termporary assistant,

Meanwhilea, delays on the new Activities
Building continued, Howaver, early in Jamuary,
1966, the floors were laid, The parish looked
Pesrwearel 10 full use of the much-needed
accommodations. Father Hamal, who had guided
much of the project, undersent surgery in January,
arvd his recovery called for a recuperation period in
Flarida, His return to Dearborm was greeted with
anthusiasm.

The parish family of St Alphansaes seas united
i sorrose im March, 1966, when its beloved pastor,
Monsignor Schulte, passed away. His Friend and
clpssmate, Cardinal Mooney, gave the sarmon at the
funeral services, attended by twenty-five monsignaor,
mare Than two bundred and filty clergymen of the
diocese and nuns represanting sevaral raligious orders.
Also present were city officlals of Dearborn and
Cretroit, and meambers of tha Knights of Columbus,
American Legion, and tha National Guard.

Monsigror Schulte was buried in the parish
cemetery next to the church, in a8 tomb beside
those of his mother, Elizabeth Ternas Schulte, and
grandparents. Bishop Allen Babeock of the Digcese
of Grand Rapids, a former assistant to Monsignor
Schulte, said the pravers at the gravesite,

Bishop NMamed Pasior

0 n March 23, 1954, The Michigan Cathalic
middde public the apgointmant of the Maost
Reverend Alexander M. Zaleski as pastor of

5. Alphonsus. Bishop Zaleski, who came to
Dearbarn from 5t, Yingent's, Pontiac, had been
cansacrated bishop by Cardinal Mooney on

May 23, 19650, His weloome was marked with great
wiar mith.

Howeever, it was not until Bishop Zaleski had
sattled in and become acquainted with his new
parish, that ke was giverns a party on July 26, to
rmark a dual calebration, He was welcomed 1o the
parish, and honored on the occasion of his Silver
Annivarsary of Ordination, He Bad been a priest
of God for exactly half his life,

Ir June, Father Brady, @ 5. Alphonsues High
School graduate of the Clags of 1944, was assisted
a1 Mass by Father Hamsl, Fathar Blaska and Father
Eugene Wojtewicz, Father William P, Murphy,
Sulpician, praached. A bangquet and reception
follewed in the Parish Hall.

Father Hamel, who had served as administrator
for four vears during the iliness of Monsignor
Schulte, and whosa tarm saw the successful direction
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it Adexdngler Aoleski an the aecasion r:_r- the
Silver dnmiversary of iy ondireliog

af the Cantennial, the completion of the naw school,
the demalition of the “Old Church,” and the
erection of the Activities Building, was assigned 1o
establish @ new parish “in the vicinity of Harper and
Thirteen Mile Aoad.” Parishioners gave him a royal
send-0ff ar the farawall party held in the new
Activities Building on Juns 26.

On the same day Father Harmel left for
g1, Clair Shores, the newly ordainad Reverend
Tharmas J. Gumbleton, destined to bacome a
hishop in the Archdiocese of Detrot, arrived at
Sr. Alphonsus 1o begin his fowr-year term as
assistant pasior,

Four menths later, recently ordained Father
Leon Page arcivad from St Henry's, Lincoln Park,
to serve the parish. The people responded with their
usual wearmth in welooming him,

Mhrea days after school reopenced in September,
1956 the first meeting of the new Parent-Teachar
Associalion was held, This arganization retained
the bishop's special interest and support during bis
entire pastorate,

With the number of prigsts now in residemnce
at St Alphonsus and the trand towards mone otfice
calls, it was all but impossible to provide adeguate
serwice and privacy to parishioness, with just two
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small offices in the rectory. Thus, in January, 1957,
Bishop Zaleski purchased the house Just north of
the rectory and rerfnodeled it into an office building.
Five convenient aoffices and two waiting rooms wers
casignated for parish businass, thus allowing the
ractory to be reserved as a redidence for the peiests,

Onge again the people said goodibya to thair
assistant pastors — two, this time, Afer e full
waars, Father Maiberger was transferred to
Sr. Aloysiug &% an assistant, and Father Makulski
weas appointed to organize a new parish in Garden
City under the patronage of 51, Dunstan. &
miultiple celebration was held in the parish
guditorium on June 23, as the parishioners bid them
fareweell and welcomed Father Harold Wolf and
Father Arthur Steslck,

Along with the announcement for the Fall
opening of 4choal, the following item appearad in
The Volce! “Mew Parking Lot — More parking
facilities have been provided for the members of the
parish. The new ot i3 on the west side of Schaefar,
just north of Gould,”

After a stay of two years, Father Arthur
Sraslicki moved on to Divine Child. His place was
taken by Father Josaph Jacyna whe had been serving
the parish in an unofficial capacity for some months.

When the Reverend VWincent Marion Bielick
was ordained to the priesthood in June, 1960, his
parenits, Mr. and Mrs. Marion Bielecki, had been
members of the parish for thirty years. Father
Bielecki had graduatad from the high school in the
Class of 1952, Bishop falecki servad as Assistant
Priest at Father Bielecki's first Solemn Mass, Father
Maiberger returned to join Fathers James Bettendorf,
Leon Page, and Seminarian James Kanneally for the
soplermn aoeasion,

Later in June, Father Gumbleton received word,
that he would conclude his fouwr vaars at
51, Alphonsus and assume his new duties as
Assistant Chancallor of the Archdiocese of Detroit.

Father John Fawser, who had come to replace
Father Gumbleton in Jure, 1960, left the followirg
September to lake up his duties at 5t Mary's
Student Chapel, Ann Arbor. Father Francis Granger
arrived the day Father Fauser lefr,

In the year that Tolloweed, the parish bid
farewell to Father Page who left for St Martins,
Detroin, and extended & cordial weleome to Father
Alex J Brunett, newdy areved from St. Rose of
Lima Farisgh. In Mowember, 1961, Father Baernird
J. Bominick was appointed to relieve Father Jacyna
who had been taken ill,



Teach me poodness,
disciplfine and Knowledge, "




i “Srilis”

I t weas in 1960 that the Ford Maotor Company
adopted a rew program broadening 105
financial assistance 1o American educal ion by
matching the contributions of Ford employess to
colleges, universities, and secondary schools. By
1962 an appeal was made to such employess within
the parish to make sontributions to the high school,
watich would then be matched dollar for dollar, The
parish made use of the AID Program well into the
1970's swhen the program was withdriwn,

Bishop Zaleski was soon involved in more
schanl expansion, Enrcllments kept clirmbaing
and St. Alphansus was doing its best to keep pace,
Move, however, land was becoming scarce, Play-
grounds and parking lots were necessary, so whare
could mora classroams be built? Why not above a
playground = on “stilts?

The pastor informed the parishioners that the
“nesw addition will extend from the present grads
school 1o the edga of the convent garden, but
instead of a sguare block nearly filled with schonl
building, the addition will provide some open Space,
and we'll look more contemparary than industrial .’

Thiz, with the help of archirects Diehl and
Diehl, was what was done, Saven alementary
schonl classrooms were provided, without sacrificing
ary of the children's outdoor play area. The
structure was aighty-seven by a hundred and six feet,

A ane-story parish library, primarily for adult
use, was the other part of the building program. [ts
site was the south side of the high school building,
petween the school and the rear driveway of the
Activities Center, Facing Calhoun, the building
twenty-Tour by eighty-four feet — promased 1o be
mare than just a place to read or borrow a book.

It wias planned as & comfortable clubroom for
the parishs older peopla. The construction project,
which cost three hundred one thousand dollars,
alsa included acoustical improsvemsanats in the music
rooms and gymnasium,

The Parish of 5t, Alphonsus, thean employing
thirty-one taaching Sisters of 51, Dominic, and
fourteen lay instructoss, was maintaining its
reputation for educational excellence, With a
1962-1963 enrallment of one thousand and seventy-
eight children in the elemantary school, and four
hundred and fifty students in the high school, it is
clear this reputation was worth keeping.

Priestly wvocations continued within the parish,
as well as within the Archdiogess, On June 3, 1862,
Reverand James Patrick Kenneally, son of Mrs. Ann
N, Kenneally and the late Patrick F. Benneally,
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officiated at his fist Solernn Mass. Father Sirianni,
Father Bielecki, Raverend BMr. Swierzh, and
Seminarian John German assisted, Bishop Zaleski
preached. Father Kenneally gave his First Blessing
during the parish reception that followed,

By mow, five years had elapsed since Father
Harold Wolf had come to 51, Alphonsus, and it was
niowi time for him $o be transferred — to Guardian
Angels, Detroit, With feelings of gratitude, the parish
acknowledged his ganerous service, Father Brunett
was moved at the same time, after anly ane year in
the parish. et, his ready availability had beft an
impression on both young and old,

Within the week, Father Richard P, Cigsniewski
and Father Jarmes F. Trent arrived; Father "G from
St. Cunegunda, and Father Trant, newly ardained.
“Eather O Corner™ in The Valeqe was widely read.

Tha Parish Council of Catholic Men was
crganized within the parish in July, 1962, Itwasa
federation of all the men's organizations of the
parish whose primary funetion was "o rander
assistance o the pastor im furthering the sparitual and
temparal life of the parish throwgh a united and
inifar med laity.”

Beverend Taoes Kenneally officated b by Fiest
Seelevinl Masy aon June 3, FR62.




The yiar 1963 saw the astablishmant of the
Parish library and the addition of the Schaefer Annex
to the parish facilities, The Annex, a farmer
glectrical wholesale store, was later to be usad as
classronms for the grade school as well a5 a maeting
prlace for parish organizations.

Ther February 9, 1964, issue of The Voice
carried this item umder the heading "'Did You Know?"™

That aur parish had §pant an seeragh af
96 000 ewery waar for thie past §se years
in new building ard irmpeosesrsants [That insura
g inuestmant and further stabilize our
communilyl. This buerdges BixTy-Iaad Sants
e farmily per wenk.

Fartunately, we had pul sdide sach year
5127 040 or about aighty-twa cents per
Farmily per weesk, o that halr abour 337,000
retained gach year for future improsemients
and repgairs. That's wently cenls ger farmily
per weak. MOW da you see how important
thai EXTRA Dollar 8 weeek |5t your Parish?77

Of the thirty-one young men ardained to the
priesthacd an June G, 1964, one was a member of
St, Alphonsus, This time the nawily crdained
parishioner was John R. German, son of
Mr. and Mrs, Andrew Gerrman, AL his First
Solemn Maws, Father Maibergsr was Archpriest.
Father German was assisted by Fathar Kenneally
and Reverend Mr. Thomas Hamel. Bishop Zaleski
preached.

Father Daminick, who had served as aritor
of The Walee during his term at 56, Alphonsus, used
the June 28, 1964, issue to anmounce his transfer to
St. Clement’s, Romaen, stating, “This is ane of the
sackdest articles your editor kas ever had to write ., "
Hic replacerment, Father Raymond J. Klauke, was
n stramger to Dearborn, His family had been
parishioners of Sacred Heart Parish singe 1830,
Father Klauke was quickly assigned to moderats the
Dads” Club ard Athletic Department, Rosary &ltar
Sodality, 30-Up Club, and to provide marriage
instructions.,

Civar aight ywears had 2lapsed sinee Bishop
Zaleski had become pastor. On December 8, 1964,
an official parish farewell was Beld in the Activilies
Building. Bishop Zaleski was about 10 maowve on o
his next respansibility — that of Coadjutor Bishop
of the Mocaese of Lansing, The schoolehildien
presented a program, Parishioners and friends offered
persanal congratulations and best wishes, Maturally,
refreshment s wera sajvar,

His farewell ta the parish was direct and full of
fenling:

A | lanwe vau as pastar of 55 Alphonsas,
| depart with & feeling of desg gratitisde in
oy heart, first af all, to Almighty God 1hat
He hag given me tha privileags of serui ng Wl
during these past gight and cne-hall years,
| arm algd gratalul te Him fosr thig many graces
Hi hias bsstowied an wouw thraough my hands,
| giwe thanks 10 Hirmn likesyise for Tha wany you
haww responded to Mis undying bowve,

fretting fmvolved

E wieen before the name of the new pastor was
announced, the financial report for 1964
forecast futwre expenditures;

Howsepwar . many things ramain to be dane
10 help 5t. Alphonsus keep pace with The nesds
af the times, eg., improvement 1 ecianca
lab=arargery facilitias, currant haaoks for parish
aniel schaol libraries, eventusl replacersnt 0f
the grgan in the church, salary nesds, 816,

Appointed to succeed Bishop Zalaski as pastor
in January, 1866, was tha Right Reverend Bernard
H. Kearns. His background as Mavy Chaplain during
World War 11 and twenty years in the Archdiocesan
Chancery Office contributed to the store of wisdom
he beought to his new responsibilities. His matural
wit and spiritual depth were quickly apparaend to the
comgregaticn,

A nurmksar of liturgical reforms corresporded
with Maonsignor's arrival. He reminded the people
that despite the termporary disorientation that might
follow,

Tha Church has survived Mero, Attila, ard
Stalin. She has ovarcome The Araes, The
Jarsanists andd tha Feanevitas; she has outlasted
the Aeformation, Eastern Schisn, Rationalism,
Industrialism, Enlightanmsnt, the French
Aevalution ard the Ku Klux Elan. She haz
prduras] padlar Destatorships, Manaichiss,
Dermacrats and Republicans. She has lived
throwgh pericds ¢ cormuprion and sragnarian,
zeal, enchusiasm, doubt, rebellion, sLiroeersian
and introspection. She bas survived one lilargical
charge: 1 think she'll survive another,

In spita of Father Klichs vision to bwild a
church bigger than most thought necessary at thae
time, even he could not fareses the crowds at the
later Sunday Maszes, Inan effort to relieve the
number of parishioners standing at the 17:00 a.m.
Mass, a second Mass was soon scheduled for the
qym tor the same hour, The practice was begun
@an an experimental hatis arad has eontinuaed fince
March 7, 1965, e dinaed)
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The Parish Planning Commitiee of ten
maembers, wwhich had been organized under
Bishop Zaleski, was ready to launch a series
al projects under Monsignor Kearms' guidance, The
first of these was the establishment in March, 1965,
of a Parish School Board undes the presidancy of
DO, Siman Batel, Principal of Lowrey School, The
ather officers were James O'Reilly, Vice-President,
Mirs. Joseph Simmer, Secretary; Mrs, Vincent Shaw,
Corresponding Secretary ) Edward Cardelli, Treasurer;
John Caluesl, Trustes; Jossph Koprowics, Trustee;
arwd Sisvar Marie Ruth, Principal,

With the transter of Father Granger to tha
Parish of 5, Agnes, in January, 10965, the number of
assistants had peen reduced to three, Six months
later Monsignor acknowledged his appreciation for
the assistance the parish had been receiving from
Father Lowis Gramdpre, Father Vern Boutilier, a
student from Mova Scotia, and from Father Thomas
Gumbleton who had all supplied weekend help.
Farher Markowicz, it was notad, had bean “ocoming
barre cyery weekday to offer one of the schaduled
Masses for eightaen years™, on 8 purely voluntes
basic.

Inner-city parish assistance began in the
summer of 1265, The Parish Planning Committes
had begun work on the project under Bishop Zalesk,
and Monsignor Kearns wwaloomed tha idlea, He
saught and recaived approwal from the Archhishop
o 48t up a sub-comrittes hagded by Jack Horrigan,
The activity known as Project Scope-Inner City, wis
the creation of a group of seminarians at Sacred
Heart Seminary, The plan called for utilizing
Seminary facilities during the summear months for
the benefit of the underprivileged and disadvantaged

children, Health education, tutaring, and recreational

activities werse offered, Volunteers wera asked to
sign up at the rectory. By July, reports were coming
in as to the success of the project,

Father James H, Fullmer was welcomed into
the parish in June, 1966, three weeks after his
ordination. Witality was his hallmark. Father
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Elauke left to become Chaplain of the Federal
Correctional Institution, Milan.

Surmmer brought more help in the person of
Father Frank Sokaoloveski whio had Been staticned in
Paris, France, as Chaplain at the Motherhouse of tha
Religious of the Sacred Heart, and as Prolesson of
Greek and Latin at the Polish Sermingry in Paris. He
wias to serve St Alphonsus while he visited his
relatmes i the area.,

Father Philip Devlin, a Holy Cross Father, a
student at U. of M., whose previous exparience
included six wears in Chile, agreed to help
o wErk ends,

Earlier in 1265, there was talk in the parish of
the nead im the high school to improve the
“hopelessly inadequate’’ science labaratories and to
renovate the cafeteria to meet new standards, This
wias the first major protlem that the ness Lay Board
of Education had 1o faca.

Proposed plans called for remodeling v
cawrnstairs clasarooms, which up to that time had
been used by the grade school, into high school
Biclagy and Chemistry labaratories, The cafeteria
which was an auditoriurm up until 1958 and which
had been wused for Mass in tha late 1920's, needed
remmodeling to dedden The students” voices,

It was thase demands that prompted Monsignor
Kaarns to write:

It is said that if ywou could cul open Lhe
hieart of any pastor, you wonld fingd engrawad
there the deathless wards, “And who's geing
to pay for all this?™

The reactan ol he rssndsees of The parish
wailll e the single msal Grpsse tant em quiding
the Parish Planning Comemities snd youwr gastar
in ddstiding wihat courss at actan 1o take,

There is no question ag 10 The desiratility
af the proposed new Tacilities, The anly
gquestion g whathar the paopla ot
Gz, Alphonsus Parish really want them, and
waanl Therm badly gncugh 1oomakse the
sedecer i oS NECEERRY [0 COnEEruct them and
kaap them in operaticn.



It was to this challenge that the Lay Board of
Education respondead, |n the middle of the summer,
July 14 to be exact, the Lay Board summerned the
parishioners 1o a meeting o urgent it could not
weail until Fall,” Recormmendations for the
educational program, axpansion, and needed mosal
arvd financial suppart of the whole parish were
outlined. Solid support for the Board's proposals
wera evidenced by a resounding affirmation ta
ateept the burden far the propoesed improvemants
in the school buildings,

School Improvements

S ince the cafeteria was 2 “must™ 1o be
complietad before scheol started in Septembsr,
the project plunged ahead. Almost immeadiately,
kicls weare taken on the creation of a Science Center
and on the rejuvenation of the catetersa, Though
higher than anticipated, John Barrett's bid was
accepted. He agreed to begin work for a guarantesd
maximum not to exceed 172,400, Additional costs
includad the architect’s fees and the laboratory
euipment.,

Ag always, the expantion pragram called for
additicnal funds. A Sacrificial Oftertory Drive
through the faithiul uss af envelopes aach Sunday
was organized. Monsignor Eearns used the
opEoriunity to point out that there is much more
to invalvement than just donating.

Parizh life offers g0 wery many OppercUuniTias
tor growth, for assistance 1o thase in waried
needs, for Lhe @tisfactions that stem Trom
wanrthwhile accomplshments and mast af all
tar spiritual sovsrcemient.

Every rmambsr af the parigh can profir, s
ard im mlernity, through active imeclvement in
same of the facets of parish life, The PTO, the
Raosary Altar Sedality, the 5t, VWincent de Paul
Society, the Thirty-Up Club, the Dads” Club —
thers are gecellem organizaticns in Tha parish,
Why not chaasa one in whech yau can find 2
special interesl, and pitch in and help?

T many parighionars ramain aloof from
the main siresm of parish life, and 1he parish
is Lhes psgrer Toe iL — ared thay are poorarn 1o
it tgs=n,

There is so much 1o ke dops: Building an
educational aysiam second To none; 1Eaching
the truths of their religion to youngsters wha
are nel enralled in the gacish school; praviding
cailtral ard social autlets for all our youih,
whether or ol they dllend school here, This
it @ mogl meaningiul objactive, and thera is
miinh e 0 e done.

Thus on tha keynote of invalvement, one
hundrad man of the parish soluntesred their help
on September 26, 1965, As Monsignor expressed
it, “This is a continuing problem and deservas
oot imual attentn, ™

Father Sokolowski returmed to Francs in
September, but the hope that Be might return was
later to be realized.

Shortly before Thanksgiving, 1965, the
church organ “expired.” In the interim, permission
for the temparary use of an elactronic ongan was
obtained from the Archbishop, Such an arrangemant
required an elaborate system of sound boxes
distribawted arownd the church.

Thess speakars will ke sat up so that there
will ba twin im thie front corner of e3ch
transepd near The conlessionals (hearing
conlesions dsring the alght o'clack Mass on
wepkdayvs will be 8 grester joy than aver |
and one will be glaced high an thea wall bahind
the cruciixion scang that surrmaunts owr high
altar.

A oweaek later Monsignor Kearns lelt foo retreat,
He explainad its walue this weay, “Apart from retraat,
amne naver eems to have a chance to collect his
thoughts — to sort through them, straighten out his
sanse of valees and rearient himself for the days
ahead,"

The “days ahead” very much focused on tha
rapnovation of the cafeteria and the high school
scienca laboratories. In the words of Father
Ciesniewski, “This is costing a fortune |, "

Responding 1o the plea for involveameant in the
parish, the Senior Citizen men took on the
responsibility for serwing the 730 a.m, daily Mass,
Their gifts of pxperience and generosity did mot
jpass unnoticad,

Recalling the woe ctehed on the face of
Bishop Laleski when he had returned from the
Council in Rome to find that the grade schoal
basilcding had been savarely damaged as the resull
of sattlement caused by the “on stilts” addition,
Monsignor Kearns received word on December,
1066, that the out-of-court settlemant had just
heen concluded and that the parish had recewed
$67 BHABZ. This he termied “a costly experience.’”

Midnight Mass, 1965, was tha first opportunity
for the parish to experience a “concelebrated” Mass,
whiich until that pericd had been reserved for
cecations such as the ordination of priests and the
consecration of bishops, 115 beauty was explained
by Monsigner: "For priests who participate in it, it
brings into claar focus the unity of the priesthood,

{eanrinued)
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Sister Rose Marpare?, a Inyal fan, oheers
Arrowes o fo picior.

angd helps tham realize that their priesthood is
something they share with other priests not for
their own benelit but for the benafit of those to
whiom thay minister.”

Whan the Parish Planning Commities issued
the fimancial report in January, 1966, the parish had
F00.000 an deposit in the Archdiocese. Outstanding
obligations amounted to 572, 000: grade schaol
awarhia ng, 530,000; scienoe egquipgment, %1 E,I:Iﬂl:l:
Seience Center, £20.000; language laboratory,

55 000; new desks, 34,000,

As the congregation continued To wuse the
termporary electrone grgan while the search
continued for @8 permanent one large enough for the
chiurch, yet within a reasonable price range, the
Alwar Rosary Sodality offered to take on the
clligation of manthly paymants.

The schonls were filled with students, but so
were the CCD classas. In early 1266 their enrollment
numbered 728, meeting in three centers — Parkman
Schonl, Maplas School and 5t Alphonsus. The
combined staff numbsered fitteen Sisters and thirty
lay teachers, Tha entire operalion was averisgn Dy
a mewly appeinted CCD Lay Board under the
guidance of Father Fullmer. An office in the
Sehaeler Bullding was set aside for the exclusive use
ol thowe actively engaged in the Confraternity
Apostolate. This office was stocked with &
mirmengragh machine, auds-visual eguiprment, and a
cnllection of professional referances. When preschool
religious instruction was made available in January,
‘one hundred three “hittle people’” took advantags
af the ppportunity. Speaking of the Confratarnity
Apcstolate, Monsignor declared, " MNo parish activity
autranks thiz one in importance,”
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Church Remaodeling

Th-c naxt significant chamge 1o take place was the
remadeling of the sanctuary to comply with
liturgical practices, It was now raquired that the
priast face the paople while offering Mass — truly,

a new exparience for both priest and people, A% in
aach phase of renewsal thal fesllemesd Waticamn 1,

51, Alphonsus opted to move slowly, allowing the
parishioners to adapt and to contribute, The Vadee
for Fabruary 13, 1966, introduced the idea.

Our present sanctuary holds 8 very real
place in the allestiong ol many o owr peaple.
It rpprasants a standing link with many
parishianers of former genealsans wihisss leas
of deap faith and chearful sacrifice are largely
responsible For what St Alghomios i today,
Ay rermaddaling of i shauld bea approached
cautiowsly and with the detarmination nst 10
changa it any miera than good litwrgical ssno
sERMS to make mandatory.

The Main Altar was left intact, including the
statuary behind the altar. A low platform was
built, raising part of the sancteary floor to elevate
the frec-standing new wooden altar. Its design of
simple elagarnce matched the wooden furnsture in
the sanctuary. A new lectern was likewisa required
from which the lectors would read the Old Testament
and the Epistle readings,

Thie results of “dollars and devotion™ were
again evidant whan parents, alumni, senior citizens
and all parisheoners were invited to tha dedication of
the meys high school facilities on March 13, Visitors
taured the Madarn Language Studio (tormerly The
libraryl, tha Sciance Center, and finally, the new
Soecial Cultural Centar at the site of the old cafeteria,
The hupa invastmeant of time, effort and money which
“raarly depleted parish reserves,” had enabled
St Alphonsus High School to meet accreditation
dermands,

By now permission had been granted by the
Archbishop for @ach parish to celebrate an evening
Mass an Sundays, The parishioners were raquested
to indicate a preference as to tima.

Thies, the five-thirty evening Mass became 4
part of the Sunday Mass schadule,

The argar “situation’ was finally settled by a
conlerence with the Archbishop. The electronic
organ would have to go, and the price of 1he pipe
prgan was not to exceed $30,000. The Wicks
Comparny promised to have the organ installed in
“nine ar ten months,” The consale was to be



placed on the east side of the church to enable the
organist Lo face the congregation for group singing;
thve pipe organ itself was to be buailt in the old choir
laft to make the pipes “accessible for maintenance
and tuning,”

Hawing completed the remodeling of the
schools, the parish Board of Education was able to
devota its time to other things. In tha Spring of
1866, 1t decidad to organize a program o send “a
For of the Sisters abroad for shoet coursas of study
pach summer.” Tha expensas invalved ware to be
met by existing grants and an annual "Bon Woyage’
dinner, The goal was 3ix Sisters eaach year, For the
first wear, four wera chosen: Sister Marie Ruth, the
outgoing principal, was unable 1o accept due 1o 1he
priess af closing school, Three Sisters — Sistar Maria
Florance, Sister Joseph Ann, and Sister Marie
Madonna — were the first Dominicans to benetit
fram The apportumty.

Father Bohbert MeMurtnie aivived at
St. Alphansus in Jume, three wesks after his
ardination, and Father Trent was transferred in
August to 51 Martin's,

Ta keep the parishioners apprised of the
ever mounting needs of the parish, a new column
wias introduced through The Voics, entitled
“Tha Layman Spaaks.” Contributors included
Judge Joseph Rashid, Dr, Simon Babel, Leo Early,
La Henn, Joseph O'Reilly, James O Reilly,

(Mirs, § Ann Hunt, Bill Sinatra , and Harry
Todeschini. Withouwt realizing it, these men wers
fulfilling the role described in the Qecres oo the

Homeooming Parade

Apostolate of the Laity which had come forth

from the Second Vatican Council, Movermber TE,
1965; “The laity should aocustom tharmselves 1o
wirrking in the parigh in close union with thair priest,
bringing to the church community their own and
the weorld’s problems as well 85 questions Concerning
human salvation, all of which should be examined
and resolved by common deliberation,”

A raspite was accorded the parish in its
attempt to “make ends meaet,” when in September a
baguest of 525 000 was raceived from the estate of
Mirs, Helen Gaartner. For the first time in 1968 the
parish was “in the black."

During the previeus summer much planning,
wirrk and generosity resulted in additional paved
space which prowided off-street parking for thrae
hundred cars, Ewen though 35 500 was saved
thraugh donations of time and materials, the projpect
cost the parish 57,500,

The new argan officially becarme part of the
church when it was dedicated by Monsignor Kearns
on January 16, 18967, at 4:00 pm, The organ was
hlessed amd the people were commended for another
accomplishment. & short concert of music for organ,
brass, waocherinds, choir and congregation followed,

Onee again, i1 became necessary 1o adjust the
parish schedule of Masses. In February, the 5:30a.m.
Mass replaced the 5:00 a.m. and the &:00 a.m.
Liturgies in the gym chapel were mow at 17:00 a.m.
gnd 12:16 p.m. The following June the 12:15 “gym"
hMass was droppead.

Froam tieme Lo Lirme notices m The Vosee
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remindad parishioners about perking violations
curing the kours of heavy church attendance,
Conditions improvad in March dus to the
installation of “Mo Parking™ signs on the east side
of Calhoun.

Sk, Alphonius's formear Deacon Malvin
Blanchette, returnad to offer Mass at 9:30 a.m. in the
church and at 17:00 a,m, in the gyrm. He was
hengrad at a recaption later in the day.

Liturgical changes continued, By Movemnber,
1967, the entire Canon of the Mass was baing
priayed in the vernacular.

Parish committee members worked hard to
gncourage the people to make use of envelopes For
the Offertory collection, In the fall of 12G7,

o thousand nineteen familios had subscribed 1o
the meweest efforts. The amount pledged was
6,182 a Sunday,

Bermard Owvens, a Basilian, and a mamber of
the parish, was ordained on December 9, 1967,
The following day he offared his First Solemn Mass
at St. Alphonsus.

New Programs

Wth 1968 camae the beginning of tha Parish
Continuing Education Program. The tweele-
week course dealt with Witness, Doctrineg, Liturgy,
and Sacred Scripture. All parish sdults, incleding
high school seniors were invited to participate.

Camsalties of the Wiet Mam War were
beginning 1o touch the family of 5t Alphonsus
wihen the name of Philip Gandolfo was added to
those of Robert Mok enna, James Hintz, and
Christopher Leskey in Janwary, 1968,

Legislation referred to as the School Aid Bill,
began to absorb everyone’s attention in early 1968,
Passage of the “Bill" would provide, on the part of
the state, financial assistance to nen-public schools,
Repeatedly, interested Cathalics were urged to write
to Michigan lawmakers,

Tha Parish Speak-Up Groups were arganized
undar tha leadership of William Flangan, ““Focus:
Summer Hope ™ a program to reduce racial tension
and prejudice followed quickly. & corps of priests
weas chosen to speak in over one hundred langer
parishes in the Archdiocese, Father "'C" was one
af that number.
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Despite the “financial strait-packer’’ the parish
wore, the Board of Education and the Parish Planning
Cormmittee recommendad to the pastor that the
school open the following September with all
twelve grades.

At the COD Opsn House hald on April 28 in
the Activities Building, for the purpose of
introducing the new full-time CCD Administrator,
Joseph Kabwinski, the scope of the proposed
program was outlined: curriculum, recruitment of
teachers, summer school classes, teacher training
wiorkshops, expandad enrallment, and effective
communieation.

Father Fullmer laft S5t. &lphonsus in
September, 1968, The roster in the parish now
read: Right Rewerend Bernard Kearns, Father
Richard Ciesnigwski, Father Fobert Mchurtria;

In Residenca: Reverend William MoCauley,
Rewerend Jobin Lombsards, Deacon:  Reverend
Mr. Edward Mowakowski.

Realizing that a broader and maore permanant
reprasantation wias needed in the parish, a membser of
the Parish Planning Committes proposed & logical
clevelopment for its own commattes, Thus, in
November, 1968, Monsignor Kearns appoinied thea
first tweanty-four mamber Parish Council, 1ts
officars were; President, John Karpach; Wice-
President, Kenneth Cravse; Secretary, William
Flanigan, This was ane of the very first Parish
Courcils organized in the Archdiocese,

The first electad Council took office the
fosllowing year: President, Arthur Cooper; Wice-
President, Bobert Hashid; Secretary, Madeline
Wiegandt, Corresponding Secretary, John Hengeshach.

Members were remingded of their twofold
responsibility by Monsignor: "0ne aspect of it,"” he
s, “is e serve as an active two-way channel of
communication batwean the Council and the
parishioners who put you there, The other is that
as a Parish Council member you must be willing to
agsume a raal degrae of responsibility for the
spiritual welfare of every member of the parish, The
Courscil shares ina wary definiie manner in the
pastoral responsibiling.” The first Parish Counil
Constitution was published on September 2, 1869,

Work toward cormmeon goals, with unity of
direction provided by the Council®s efforts, began
with an effort to restore parish fiscal stalulity, The
first Parigh Festival known as PIP [Parish Improve-
ment Program) under the chairmanship of John
Ewing, was held on May 23-25, providing an
cpportunity for the parish to function as a single
unit, All ages joined in a united effort, The out-



come was a financial success — 552 862.36 — and a
growth in the coneept of community, Mr, Ewing
axprassed his foalings:
Mo pnandds cam @xpass vy Granet e
adequaltely far the fantastic turnout by the
[hgasands of people who cames Lo the
Spring Festival ard the hundreds who waorked

o i, Gad Blese You, Thank You, and
wal l-clami 10 searyane of yoi framm Me, PIP,

Following the establishment of the Parish
Council, waord was received from the Archdiocese:
“Every parish in the Archdiccese shall establish a
Committes on Worship within six months. [t will
hisve a5 members, laity, religiows, and clergy of the
community,” Miss Gerrede Prion sereed as its
first chairperson, Father Melvin Blanchatie acted
a5 moderator.

The 19705

W:h thie advent af 1970 came 1he need for
parishes to conduet self-studies on the
feasibility of keeping parish schools open a3 the
financial picture steadily worsensd,

The Schical Aid Bill had now becoma
Parochaid. Parishioners ware again asked to
writa to the Michigan Legislature — hundreds
respondedd, Monica Bermer, Lilhan ' Reilly, and
Joan Forsthoafel met with Representative Lucille
MeCullowgh, Teschers, students, and parents
wiolunteerad to work on a cause pionaered yoars
aarlier by Chave Mills, Larry Masten, and others,

Om February 15, Fathar McMurtrie announced
hiz plans to return to schoaol full tims, concluding
his wear and 8 half of service to 51, Alphonsus,
Fathar Jarome Swiarzl was assignad to replace
Fathar McMurtrie, but by March it was clear he
weiuld not he -:*.rm*ing, due to & heart allment,
Monsignor remarked, "Say a praver that Father "C*
and | stay healthy. |IF one of us gets sick, | think
the ather would guietly head Tor Lower Hloakbia,”
Fathar Gerald Malomey arrived some weaks laTer
from Holy Mama Parish, Detroit.

In March, 1970, the CCD program was
ax panded acoording o Archdineesan guidelinas,
Its maw name, Religious Education Program, was
shortenad to AREP.

It wears at thwe sam: timie that the nama of
James Fleming was added to the list of thase who
hed died srving in Viet Mam.

In May the Parish Festival was declared “a
smashing success.” Monsignor named o namaeless
lacly as M'Good Sport of the Festval,” Wearing ald

Fatlhor Frank Sokalowsly blegses Fasrer fond baskets
e flely Saturday.

chicsas for ber work i1int, she found ot day's end
that her good shoas had been sold for twenty-fiva
Cents.

Father Clesnbewski received his “marching
orders™ in Jure, 1970, After a tarm of aight years,
bz wras assigned to 51, Clement’s, Centerling,
Monsignor announced a farewall reception for him
which would take placs in the Activities Building,
e won't attempt to mention a closing time — it
weaill led Be an emply gesture, he has so many
friends , , "

It wras during that summer, in Jure, that
Father Carl "|"':-|r:|IF:'-,-' came o 5. Alphonsus 19 serve
as assistant pastor. Little did he ar the parishionars
raalize that he would assume the role of pastor in
1923, In eaoming fram St Gertrude, S5t Clair Shores,
Father noted that he had teft the shores of beautiful
Lake 5t. Clair for the banks of the Rowge River.

The parish rejoiced with Mr. and Mrs. Charles
. Kelly an Sunday, Septembser 13, 1970, when
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thetir son, Father Richard Kelly, returned to

LSt Alphonsus to celabrata his first Solermn Mass,
The Altar Rosary did a “bang-up" job according to
Monsignor, providing a reception suitabla for the
QG CASIGN,

With the passage af Parochaid by the i |:hlg:|n
Lagislature and the declaration by the Suprems Court
that such @ law wias constitutional, non-public schools
nreathed a deep sigh of relief, 11 weas short-lived,
howsavar. Proposal Cwas passed on Movember 3,
1970, which called for & eonstitutional amendment 1o
prochibit services, with the excaption of bas transporia
tian, 1o children attending nen-public schools, On
Movamber 15, the Parish Council met and resolved,
"That tha Parish Council make an announoermeant
that owr schoal will mot close .. 7

Monsignor agreed with the moticn, but
reminded members that part of the parish could not
kst sorved to the ne-gle:t of thaze parizhicners not
directly affiliated with the school. "The parish must
b=z consulered as a whaole,” A Day of Recollection
was planned a3 a sign of rededication on the part of
the Council membsars,

As parish schools evarywhere waited for a
decision from the Cardinal, Monsignor rerminded the
piroples

Whar | mean is this: onoe we Knoie wheat
thie frampwark af tha decidion 15, war shoulbd
P The rpspureefulnmss and datarmamsation
meeded o provide 1ae al our needs. & spirit
ol apathy snd discaouragemsant hgra can b far
e harmilal thian anylhing coming fram
“domntoeen '

| emay be wrong, | oflen am, but | really
fepl that nobady el can defeat us. We can,
heqiisenepr detpat ourssdeas. S50 BT weir Tor Hig
Ermirercs's decision, nat in disgruntlement and
dispair, but patiantly, ready oo taks wha Tpeaer
sclion i indicaled &8 Lhat 1ime.

One of the most vital elerments of lifa at
St Alphonsws hald its first meeting on January 11,
19771, &1 1:00 pom. in the Scheafer Building, The
Senior Citizens described ke recuirements for
membership swithin their ranks:

Thit group is not bounded by strict 2ge
barrigrs Bul rather rpprpspnlys & large group of
parsons af warying aoes who Hase ratived Trom
regula pmplayment, watched their childran
grow ared begin hain owm homes, or who have,
perbaps, found themselves alona at this time ol
lite, ALL are raady Toe 0 goad Tima at a
micimeent s matice.

Early in 1971 the Archdiocese published
puidelings for the continuation of parish schools.
The Parizh Council met on twe days in succession
and the finance cammittes mat on 8 eontinuing
basis Lo meet the requirements. In March word
was raceived that hoth schaals of the parish rﬂight
remiin open, Mensignor seas quick to remind the
parisheaners, “We can now weith relieved minds
buckle down 1o the never-ending task of paving,
rial just for the school, but for aur entra parnsh
orosgranm,”

Moww, mare than ever, the Fastival became 3
recessily, John Ewing agraed again to sarve a3

Fartfer Yopley presides ot Dre vemeration of the relic of 51 Almhonsus, August §, 1977
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chairman. Dave Mills took on the ticket raffle and
organized the system that is stllin use today. When
the tent cama down in May, 1871, the chairman
sabed it all, 1 never worked with o tiner, more
cooperative, hardworking group of people in my
life. | can’t praise them enough,”™

Father Eugene O°Brien, 5.1, son of
Mr. ancd Mrs. Patrick O'Brien, offered his First
Galemn Mass at 5t, alphonzus on Sunday,

June 13, 1971, The parish joined in calebrating
with the news Jasuit.

In July wiord was recaivad that Father Mel
Blanchette, who had served the parish as a deacon
and as a priest, would be assigned te Washingtan, D.C.,
effective Sugust 1,

In September bids were taken on the
rederaration of the interior of the church, The
project was 4 tangible rasult of the FIP.

The mext liturgica | sdvance was the Baptismal
Mass, celebratad on Sunday, September 12, at the
12;30 p.m. Mass. The custom was adopted on 2
monthly basis. Private baptisms continued on the
remaining Sundays of the month.

It waas in the Fall of 1971 that the Worship
Commirtee bagan a series of articles in The Voice,
written by a seminarian of the Society of St. Paul
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By way of introduction, tribute was paid to twe
specizl blassings enjoyed by the parish:

Cre of the great blessirgs 1hat 51, Alphonsus
Parish rnjoys it an sozident of geography.
Inside Gur parish Bounds thers are a graaz many
manifestatians of the religicus spirit. The one
that First cormess 0o mird is thie Convent of the
Divine Magter on Warren and Dakman
Bowlevard . ... Another glecs is 5t Faul's
Eanastery on Pimehisr st wibiich s also thie
center lar Alba Houwse Commupications in aur
afgd,

The mutual support and benefits derived
through association with these religious groups and
the parish continues to bear fruit to the present day.

The Christion Service Committes was instituted
to help those whio had specific nesds which could not
be fultilled elsewhara, The call went out for
volurtesrs whio would “make & sort of open commit-
mant to do whatever comes up.”” With that & a job
description, Mrs, Ann Butler agreed 1o get it started.
Thus began a program that has expanded sach year
in scope and spirt,

“all parishioners are invited te come and mest
the Lay Ministers on March 19, 1872, from 2:00 to
3:30 pom, at the Reception in the Activities Building.”
After months of careful explarnation and selection,
the first twenty-5ix Lay Ministers were commissicned
by Cardinal Dearden to serve tha faithiul of
St. Alphonsus:

YWou, my hrothars, haee been chosen for
an important service and mas rde STiva
mmnre parnesily tham pear 10 liva 2 ChristEn
life, 1a give gand sxample, to wWitness 10 yaur
Taith, argd to be dedicated 1o Christ's lving
prasence i Lhe Eucharist.

Following another successhul Testival in May,
1972, Monsignor exprassed his gratitude to the
workars — seven hundred workers are needed far a
good festival — and To John Ewing:

and ina special way ' like to thank
Johm Ewing, wahiose unobirusive ard wlorz
effici=nt leadar=hip makes the whaole thing
possibin. Without Joehn we'd be kast, There's
na way | ko of 10 express with any degres o
acouray the debt we all owe Jahn, TEis o just
3 feahbe efiart to incdcate that we're desply
conscingg of this debt and would gupress it
adeauatsly il we onhy knew e,



MHaonsighor Kesigns

harm Monsignor Kearns announeed kg
reswnation an Movermnbar 5, 1872, and his

detarmination to serve as an associate pastor,
the unbelict and sincere regret of the par ishionars
wias reflected inanopan letter printed in The Vaoice
at the request of Marguerite Miller. Her final lines
cappizd the Teelings of the congregation: “Thank
wou, Monsignor Kaarns, for your unceasing and
bowing labars in our behalf. Your futore wellare i3
in the hands of Chur Lard, and He wnll mat fail '||'|:|u."

When the Parish Council met on Movember 18,
everyong's anergies were directed toward a solution
of the twotold crisis — how to persuade Monsignaor
to remain and how 1o balance the budget, Mumerous
solutions weare afferad during that thrae-hour mesting.
The agreed-upon plan was that Monsignor bs
requasted to change his transter to a “sabbatical
legwe' af are waar 10 enable the parish 1o solee ns
fiscal problems, At the end of the period Monsignor
weds to return a5 a functioning priest without the
burdens ot the pastorate,

N the relief of all, Monsignos's response was
typically positive:

| vparit Lo take this opporiuniiy to pxpress
mYy grast gratitude ta the Parish Cauncil far
GEming up with & plan sech be They havea, From
miy parsanal point of vies, it's just splend i,
rever did weant 1o ledve bhere, ol Smply fiost,
in airder 1o giea Ay lsadairship a chianca ©o
attack our financial problems with wgor and
vitality, Bur This makas laaving @edr 50 misch
easiar. Knowing 17 ke back makes all ihe
dil lsrgrmee in the world. Bpeause thers's ane
thing I'va learned in the past fawe waaks
1"rms guaimyg Lo siergsly Tewl like a Tish ool oF
willar anyplnce @lsa biut hasa,

Dwring the ning months that fol lowed
Mansigner's departure, Fathar Yagley sereed as
parish administrator, The search for 8 new pastos
followed Archdiccesan guidelines which callad
lar the preparation of a parizh “profile,” outlining
the compssitnn al the pareeh and the R|:‘:-E-:‘:|F|l:‘: s
of the peopla. The farty-page profile, compiled
undear the direction of the Parish Council president,
Louwis Peiffer, was flnﬁll'hlr reduced 1o a descriptive
summary of the pastor St Alphonsus hoeped to fiod:

& spirrtual lpsder sensitive to parish
o mdEnsu s belore mak ing changes, ard
responsive to general and spreific sgiritwal
and litwrgical needs of the parish, including
tha woung, middls-aged, and ssniar citizens.
A adrinistrator wha can wark effect valy
willh the intersded lay business marager and

Mre, Mary Lierz, 2 member of the Legion of Mary,

cREwE s e srarae of Wiy digriie fhe May Frogeseiog,

his stuff. Disposed Lo wirk spergetical ly with
[ Parmah Cagincil argd o188 inis comim issinns.
Willing to support sincerely the parish’s

e icalion 15 ||||;||l|'.||nir|:| L& camplata
aducatioral program,

Tha summaer of 1973 brought morée changss in
the pastoral staff, Father Maloney left in Juna which
meant that Father Yagley and Father Sokolowski,
mcgr The anly priescs at 2, Al phonsus, spent several
hactic weeks just keeping up with ordinary duties.
Father Thomas Byrne, then on sick leaws, Father
Raobart Donlon, SCJ, and Father Taed Cassidy, 5CJ,
both attending the University of Detroit, Tor the
surmmer, lent a helping hand. In July Father
Donald Kresmer svas appointed temporary
assistant, pending the appointment of a permanent
associate, Father Rabert Kurilec, 8 Priest of the
Sacred Heart, arrived in August from Donaldson,
Indiana, where he had been serving as a seminary
|||-:J1'E-\..~.-:.lr. In Oetakbar hotk agresd To serve as
associates.

In rasponse to tha request of the Parish
Council that Father Yagley be made Pastor of
91 Alphonsus amd that Monsignor Eearns bae
reassigned to the parish, the following good mngws



servad as the “oover story'™ of The Vouwe far
September 30, 197 3;

Word weas recaived fram Bishop Schoenders's
wllice this weak that Father Yagley has haan
assigned as Pastor of 5, Alphonsus. Father
Eresmer and Father Kurilec are assignedd as
assnciatas

Monsignar Bernard Kearns will returms o
. Alphonmis in 2 non-sdminisiralees position
in the near Tutiare, We pray that the Father will
guiale them in their Tuture erddsavars and we may
all griws dpivitically a5 a family.

In the same issue of the parish paper,
September 30 was designated as “Mrs. Esper Day.”
The 12:30 p.m. Mass was oflered for her intentions
and a reception followed in the Schaefer Building.
I a parish moted for its large number of devoted
parishinners, Mis. Gertrude Esper’s years of service
called for special racognition. She acknowledged
the honor with guiet pleasure.

Bishop Walter Schoenherr and Father Gerald
Bremnan, Dearborn Wicar, formally installad Fathar
Yagley, Father Krasmer, and Father Kurilec as
pastor and associates on Sumday, October 23, ot the
12:30 p.m. Mass, The parishioners were invited to
mel and congratulate the “new" prigsts of
St Alphonsus.

Aches and Pains

T hee 1970's ushered in the era of “Maintenance.”
Each vear the aging buwildings seemed to develop
a new malady,

The ract an the high school building could ma
longar be patched up. An inspection indicated that
the old rocl would have to be removed and & new
one provided. This was accomplished, much to the
consternation of the high school students wiho
sutfered through weeks of tar fumes, Knowing
that they would remain dry during the next school
wear, made the sitwation nat just tolerable for them,
but weorthawhile,

Jarnuary, 1974, marked the first of Father
Yagley's "State of the Parish” addresses. Speaking
at all nine weakend Mazees he racounted the
spiritual ang material ha ppenings of the preveows
vear, Father expressed concern over the inability of
the parish to provide a yearly raise for employees.
He felt it an injustice ta let this situation continue.

A1 last his sabattical was completed, and
Monsignor Kearns left S5t Jude's, Detrait, and
returnied to 51, Alphonsus, the parish he loved ard
the place ke had chosen to continue his mimistry.
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It goes without saying that Sr, Jude’s returned him
very reluctantly,

Mext, the bleachers in the gymnasium gave out,
With the assictance of the Dads” Cluks, the old onas
wera ramoved and mew anes installad. The Dads’
made this their major parish project For the year,
underwriting the total expenditure,

Father Kuriles et in June, 1874, to beeoms
the principal of a high school in San Antonie, Texas,
In October, Father Kresmer was magde pastor of
St1. Charles, Mewpaort,

Gaveral weeks before this, a phone call was
diractad to Father Yagley, An unfamiliar voice
said, “1°'m Father Leon Hart — you know, like
the Lions' football star. | wnderstand you nead
some help and 1'm looking for 8 parish where | cén
gssist.” Thus, Father Hart, a Basiliam and an
administrator at Assumption High Scheol in
Wirdsar, Ontario, became a member of tha Family,
Only a brief time was needead to reveal that no one
enjoved a eelebration more than Father Leon,

The second “State of the Parish®™ address in
January, 1875, contained the welcome news that
the people had been more genereus and that the
financial statws had improwved, But little did
Father Yagley realize that as he spoke these words,
the school cafeteria was being flooded with eight
inches of water, due 1o & brokean seser line — about
SE000 doners the drasin, [t was just a few maonths
later that M, Henry Boleski's sewer broke, some
twenty feet from where the sehool's had broken.

Father Echward Qlazewski arrived in January
from Christ the King Parish, and Father Donald
Crammeer, newly ordained, followed in February,
Father Demumer weas to devote his efforts to the
high schoal students through religious counseling
angd classroom imstructicn,

In Spring, thanks to the Dads” Club, the
church bells which had been rung by hand, were now
alactrically operated and an electronic carillon was
added, thus enabaling hymns to be playved after the
“amgalus”, and before the Masses.

That summer the interior of the convent was
painted. Mew lockers were installed in the high
school, The grade school lost two rooms 1o the
increased high schocl enrollment of six hundred and
ninety studants. Due to rusted brackels, exiendve
wiorhk wis needed to prevent the church gutters
from fEI|i|"|g.

Father (Mazewski laft in January of 1976, and
wias not replaced wntil July of that year by Father
Frank Camaj. He was the first Albanian priest to
ke ordainad in the United States.

Mamy stories begin, "0n a cold Decambser
morning.” It was a cold Decamber maorming in



Fother Fupere LePebyee and Fathee Yagley officiare o services an St Awwe's Nighy,

church dus to the breakdown of a circulating pump
which left the church without heat., An emergency
pump wigs guickly brought in to prevent furthe
damage, Nidhigan was beginning to experience its
coldest winter amd the country was soon to feel the
affects of the natural gas shortage that closed rmany
schools and factories, Extensive repairs were bagun
on all heatin'g systems, not anly o oenseree gas bt
to reduce those gas bills of 87000 a month,

Irn March, a stone from the church tower came
crashing to the ground, just missing some people
entering the church. Over the years surmmer heat and
wirter cold had taken its toll. Saveral piscas of stone
haad to e replaced as weell as many of the crossez on
top of the towars, Again, steel ping bad rusted and
cracked some of the stone work,

Fathear Framk I::..irrl.=.|| weas transferred ir June,
1977, to Ascension, Warren, and Father Frederick
Klattner filled his position in July.

Prasently, S5t. Alphonsus is served by Father
Yagley, Monsignor Kearns, Fathers Sokablowiki,
Dermer, and Klettner, with Father Hart assisting on
wekends.

Nisters of 8 Dominie

B efore there was a 5t Alphonsus Church, there
was @ 5t Alphondus Schacl, For more than
one hundred and thirty vears, the people of this
parish community have dedicated thermselves to the

baliat, “Train a child in the way he should go, and
wehen he is old he will not depart from it
[Proverbs 22:6)

Since Father Bueschsenmann contracted for the
first thres Adrian Dominicans in 1897 for a "salary
ool Tarty dollars a manth, Tifty dallars tor F_:-I._.-,,'lr'q Ehie
cergam, with tha care of the sacristy and altar linen 1o
be included,”™ the Dominican Sisters have-helped to
staff the sehoals,

At times the grade and high school operated as
8 single unit under ane principal swwho wsoally was
the comvent suparior as well. At a later date,
acereditation standards required separate pringipals
for tha two buildings. Sometimes a third Sister
sarved as superior.

Armong those who served at St Alphonsus in
these positions wera Sister Mary Rose, Sister Mary
Josephineg, Sister Mary Bernadine, Sister Mary
Christing, Sister Mary Anthony, Sister Mary Gyprian,
Sister Mary Ursula, Sister Mary Francis, Sister Francis
Joseph, Gister Reparata, Sister Jean Marie, Sister
Marie Ruth, Sister &nn Ragina, Sister Mary Lourdes,
Sister Clare Cacile, Sister Mary Bruna, Sister Agnes
Charles, Sieter Kathlean Scanlon, Sister Bose
Margaret, Sister Joseph Cecila,

With the advent of the 1960's many new areas
of amdeavor were opened to the Sisters, Today
forty-six percent of the Dominicans are ervgagecl in
educatiaon, CH that numbser, thirteen Sisters are
stationed at 5t, Alphonsus wiich s the largest
number of Dominicans engaged in the service ol
ane parish in the archdiocesa. They are: Sister
Maree Arthur, Sister Marsee Harobd, Sister Maorita Marie,
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Sister Marie Gabriel, Sister Rose Clemeant, Sistar
Mary Louise Gass, Sister Wirginio MacTaggart, Sister
Mauritia, Sister Glare Charles, Sister Barbara Ann,
Gister Joseph Cecile, Sister Mary Willard. Sister
Mary Fisher is am instructor at Henry Ford
Comrmunity College,

In Septamber, 1977, James E. O'Donnell was
narmed high school principal. Rathar than a break in
rradition, the selection of a layman marks a return
1o thi first school erected in 1846 with Joseph
Hellner as headmastar,

What, perhaps, has been true over the antire
history of St, Alphonsus has been the conviction
that a school is an integral part of the parish,

A Year of Jubilee

O n Sunday, Qctaber 24, 1976, Father Yagley
proclaimed a Year of Jubiles to commamaorate
the 125th anniversary of the founding of

St . Alphonsus Parish on October 10, 1B5.

An Anniversary Book was commissioned o
racall in words and pictures the historie events of
those years. Various groups and organizations held
festivities throughout the year with the “Anniversary '
theme; the PTO Binner Danca, the grade school's
“Happy 125th Birthday™ concert, the Sodality’s
fashion show, the high schools “Fall Revue,” to
rame but a fow,

Aun histenie markear was struck commemarating
the sacrifice, vision and faith of the founders and
pist parishioners.

The day af celebration, Dotober @, 1877, was
markad by a concelebrated Mass solemnized at
12:30 pom. A processbon of visiting clergy, religioes
and parish representatives led by a Color Guard,
knights of Columbas, and men of the Alhambra,
marched Trom the rectory to the church, Bishop
Walter Schoenherr was principal celebrant. Father
Walter Markowice preached,

A parish reception fallowed in the Activities
Building from 2:00 — 4:30 p.m. "Refreshments of
all kinds in good quality and guantity were served.” &

Founded 1852

125th ANNIVERSARY
ST. ALPHONSUS PARISH
IN COMMEMORATION OF

THE FOUNDERS
AND
PAST PARISHIONERS
FOR THEIR GIFTS OF VISION

SACRIFICE AND FAITH

Qelober 9, 1977




55



Members participete i moptkly meeting af Parish Couned

k:-"‘hh_.f;} PARISH ORGANIZATIONS QIJ

I hie story of St. &lphonsus would be incomplete
without recalling the numearows parish

organizations which developed as the size and
demands of parish lite increased, Through the years
parish erganizations have continued 1o be the back-
bone of spiritual, charitable, and social encownter,
Each parishiener with the desire to be engagead
productively in the welfare of St Alphonsus, has
kad an ongoing program through which to chanmel
the desire to participate. Such a coneern for
individual inwolvement led 1o the establishmant of
the Fosary Alvar Society in 1891,

Rasary Aftar Sodality

It wias Monsignor Kearns who expressed the
beliet that “the ladies of the S0rar sC'EII_|S|I'.'||' are tha
hack hone ol any |.'|:=r|5.|"|."' The Saodality bylaws
indlicate the axtent of their sarvice: “'The purpose of
this urg.ilnizutin;m is the care of the altars, the inens,
and the comduct of devotions to Our Lord's Mother
urdier the title of the Rosary, ., . The objactives
shiagll e to unite the women of the parish in a spirit
of friemdship and cooperation, to raise funds Tor
thi care of the altar angd the sanctuary, and to
participate in local, state, national and intermational
projects approved by the pastor,”™

The Fosary Alar Sodality holds monthly
ﬂee‘ti*‘gs to proyvide an oppsortunity far the
vaomen 10 plan thelr actvites and 1o meat socially,
Reports of thewse avents are recorded in The Vieice

b6

What is not reported are the many hours that are
spent in the actuwal cara of the church, The scant
of tha hot iron on freshly laundered altar linens ar
the hum of the carpet saeeper being moved ower
the Parsian rugs at the foot of the altar are part of
the care that s carried on by The lad@s yeai after
vear, The funds realized from their social events
make possibla the replacemant of items as they are
nezeed.

Caorporate Communion an the first Sumday of
the manth and thea racitation of the Rosary at the
wake of aich deceased membser provides Lhe spiritual
rmphasi s,

Histarically, the women of the Altar Sodality
wera divided into quilds. Today, two such guilds
remain actee: 51, Bita's 'I:Sl,.l-ln:Jr wehich providesd the
tapestry antipendiurm, and 51, Theresa®s Guild, which
has provided the baptismal gowns given to each
intant baptized in the church.

The Sodality contimes to be & channel of love
through service,

Lislers

Ushers have baen serving St Alphansus Church
since the late TEO0 s althowgh They ware not
forrmelly organized until 1925, Edward Aeuter, S,
sarved as First president during the pastorate of
Fathar Klich,

Ushars, past and present, have maintained the
purpose of the arganization: "o uphold and



preserye dignity in the House of God and to maintain

proper odder at all church services and afbars
Their watchyweord s continue 10 be “revargnca,
purdiiuality, politenass and cheerful service."

Menthly business meetings and falloweship
through the yvears have characterized the group,
Baseball games, picnics, card games ang informal
qatherings, and more recently, the annual dinner-
dance for ushers and their wives typity the lattes,

Daceased members are remembearadd i the
annual Thanksgiving Dy Mass and in the Rosary
recited by the ushers at the wake of a8 mamber.

Perhaps, The VYeoioe of 1965 had the best
description: "As wou seo, the usher comes ina
variaty of sizes and fraom all walks of life, Heisa
m&n of integrity, sincarity and has an ardant desire
tia daa the job the best way ha knows how — in the
spryice of his church, in the service af s pasuor
and in The service of hiz fallow parighionars.”

St. Vincenr e Pauld Society

The St. Alphonsus Conference of 51, Vincent
de Paul Society was organized in 19258, Georga
Harger served as the group’s first prasident. The
purpose of the society has been to meet the neaeds
of families within the parish who require assistancs,

Funds Tor these Corporal Works of Mearey ara
raised through free will offerings for The Swmday

Hagere Altar Sodality members examine new aifter lineos,

Visitor, poor boxes, book racks, Thanksgivieg Day
collection, and the iale of reliqious calendars.

In recant yeaars families have been able 1o
shara more directly by bringing gitts of food to the
altar rail during the Offertory of the Thanksgiving
Cray Mass wehich are then delivered to the naedy by
the Wincentians.

Throughaout The years the wark of the
S, Wineent de Paul Society has been carried on
quietly and effectively,

Men s Cluly

Sinca the 1940's the Men's Clubs has baen a
functioning organization. |ts contributions to the
lite of the parish have remained constant although
thet name of the group has changed several times,
Cruring the 1940°s and 1950 members belonged to
the Sponsors Club whose méain purpos: was o
swippart the athlenie programs af the paresh schools,
I the late 1950's the pragram remained the sama,
but the narme was changed to Dads® Clubk. The sale
af sEason passes provided the major portian of
ineoime, |Increased responsibilities in the 1960
called for an expanded membership and additional
sources of revenua.

In 1975 the Dads' Club changed its name for
tha third time: The Men's Club of 5, Al phornsus, o
imclude all man of the parish. Thair role was further

)
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axpanded, |n addition 1o supporting athletic
programs, the membars agres “to assist the parish in
any area where neaded.”

Social aspects of membership are reflected in
the informal parties in the Schaefer Annex, the
annual dinner-dance, the parish picnic and freguent
golt outings.

The 30-Uip Club

Father Maurice Geary lent his assistance, in
August, 1952, to the formation of a “club 1o give
single Catholics an opportunity o meet and share
in tha social and spiritual benefits which such a
group ofters.”™

This elub Bas met on 8 manthly basis with
varied activities plamned to meeat their needs.
Members hawa been obsarved dancing on Saturday
night, boarding a bus for Frankenmuth, ice skating
at a lacal rink, attersding Mass an Sunl:li-ry ar
bowling on Sunday afternocons.

The 20-Up Clubs membsrship has crossed
city and parish lines. The members continoe to
extend a welcome hand to any who wish 1o join
tham.

Legion of Mary

The Legion of Mary has always called for
great devotion on the part of its members. The
first organization at 5t. Alphorsus was formed in
1955, This group has cont inued through the efforts
ot @ numbssr of people who continue to mast on 8
weekly basis. The Legion leads the Rosary before
Masses and it is instrumental in planning desotions
to thie Blessed Mather, They unite efforts with tha
Woeship Commission to plan the May Procession
and the Crowning of Our Lady sach year, This
gctivity is especially meaningful to the families
whaose children, led by the First Communicants,
jmin in the procesion,

Senior Citizens

The Senior Citizers of 31, Alphonsus have
alweays been a vital facet of parish life. Their
participation in all parish arganizations has
oontributad to their continuity.

It s not until the mid-Sixties that an
organization was formed whose aims and purposes
ware directed towards the interests of the Senior
Citizens, The first members weare part of the City

af Dearborn's Senior arganizations,

I 1970 whan tha 51, Alphonsus Laisure
Timers were organized, their bylaws expressed their
emphasis: “The 5t, Alphonsus Senior Citizens are
primarily invalved in the promation of their
members’ spiritual and educational growth,
particularly in the areas of Christian servics and
worship,”

Iri the areas of continuing education, this
group scheduled programs on the sacraments, the
liturgy, the aging process, and benefits for the
alderly, Membsars have worked closaly with tha
Christian Service Commission in visiting the sick
and infirm, offering slace to the bereaved, and in
lending assistance generally.

In March, 1873, 5t. Alphonsus Senior
Citizens requested and received representation an
the Parish Council. Roy Deufel and Mrs. Marnon
Caulsat were tha first Councl reprassntatives.

The membership has grown to one hundred
and aighty-twa, Thair well-rounded calendar
includes trips to Florida, places of intarest in
Michigan, retreats, workshops for the Festwal
Boutigue, and special saasonal parties, They
provide unparalleled service to the homebound
through the “Meals on Wheels™ program.™ They
maintaln contact with shut-ing through visits and
the bringing of Hely Communion.

51, Alphonsus Senior Citizens portray a living
exarple of the Lay Apostolate,

Farent Teacher Orgamization

A the size of parish schools increased in the
1960's, it becarme apparent that if parents wera 1o
continua to share the respanailility for their
children's education, there would have to be an
oppertunity for a meating of minds, The PTO
wits formed in 1956 through the efforts of
Bishop Zaleski.

This group Ras gleen parents and teachers an
ppportunity to work togather for educational
advancement. [t helps 1o sponsor such programs as
the Sciarce Fair and the Art Showes, Members assist
in serving refreshments that Tallow many activities
in &nd arownd the sehocl, The annual PTO Dinner
Dance has bacomea a favorite “night out” for the
adults. Funds raised throwgh membership and
spoecial aclivities have pravided library books, audio-
visea | eguiprnent, curtains for the stage, and other
enrichments,

PTO meetings acquaint parents arwl 1eachers
wiith mutual proklems and supply assistance in
maeting them.



Father Yagpley joins reachers and graduares frame 86 Alphansus High School or the occagion of the Stk olrsy reunion,

Seants

If wou can remamber waking up in a cold
cabrim, waandering through the woods with dewey
grass underfoat, eating partially cooked dough
around a hot dog, sending & block of wood, and
displayirg a shiny naw membership pin, then you
recall tha .‘_'3-:::'11_'.|r'-g I’*!u-g'::mdl B, Alohornses, This
program has besn reported throwghiowt the long
history of thae parish. Troops have baen availabile
for beath bows and girls at various times, These
troops have heen ably gl..i-:]r.'-:i by qdeddicated acdults
whioss sarvioes continua. Tha youngsters invalved
im these programs give seryvics to the parish when
needed, and weork 1o increase their faith throwgh
var iows achavements, such a3 the Maron Mecal
and tha Parvuli Dai awards.

Yourh With Action

S Alphonsus Parish has through the years
recognized the special neads of all age growps in
planning its activities. Special concern has always
beem far the young people, The names and
arganiration of the groups have changed from timea
1o tiimss, but the abyject ves have remained the same —

to provide the yvoung people with svholesome
activities and ta instill the concept of stewardship.

Young Men's and Young Ladies” Sodalitics
davaloped in the 1930% and 1940%; the Catholic
Y¥outh Organization in tha 1250%. The Valiant
Cluby amd the Youwng Christan Movement in thae
1960 preceded Youth With Acton, whinse
program has included, on 8 waekly bacia, the study
of the Seriptures, Church History and the
Sacraments, Social aul ings and service to the parish
raund out theair Erosgram,

Hang Boosters

Harg] Boastars have warved 51, Slphonsus
school band: in much the tame way the Men®s Cluk
has supported the athletic programs, The member-
ship, composed peimarily of band members’ parents,
has provided equiprment and uniforms, of excellent
style and quality, with funds raised through candsy
sales, ocoasional socials, and monthly paper drives,
The band &nd the Band Boosters have mada
outstanding contributions to rumeraus parish,
civic and patriotic functions.

Th@gs JIFOGERNE v contribpied g Hy to Bhe st and activity of
parish fife that have characterized the Wetory of 58 Alphonsas Sinee (5 origin,












